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31 2018 31 2019 31 2020 31 2021 31
@
2017 31 |2018 31 |2019 31 |2020 31 |2021 31
IFRSC )

25,989 28,575 28,839 28,334 18,402

(991) 2,923 2,076 9,759 1,067

(744) 2,194 1,120 7,411 1,006

- - 6,455 11,610 (1,672)

6,113 6,708 6,383 6,117 6,658

C )

113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000 113,000

18,036 20,230 31,215 42,825 35,853

2,044,153 2,467,390 2,591,283 2,827,759 2,758,918

159,611 179,027 276,239 378,982 317,283

(6.584.07) 19,415.93 9,911.50 65,584.07 8,902.65
- - 57,123.89 102,743.36 (14,796.46)

0.88 0.82 1.20 1.51 1.30

(4.04) 11.47 4.35 20.02 2.56

69,510 (151,954) (66,202) (38,482) 278,897
(69,551) 152,162 66,557 38,332 (278,974)

225 422 779 600 557

«C )
C ) 113,000
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2020
GDP 28.6
GDP 22.9
10 12 11.6 2020
2021
2021 GDP 5.1 GDP
2020 6.8 2019 10 12 2.3
2020 233.9
12 73.6
2020
2019
2019
G
2021 Russell/Nomura Large Cap 4.4
2021 ROE 7.2 2020 6.7
2020
2020
11
2021 15 30
30,000
TOPIX 2020 1,403.04 2021 1,954.00
39.3 2020 18,917.01 2021 29,178.80
54.2
2020 10
2020 0.05
110 27
12 18
10 2021 0.15
19 +0.2
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+0.25 10 0.1
10
0.12
107
2020 FRB 0.5
11
2021 102.59
2021 31 110.97 2020
118
2020 114.43 115
ECB
2021 18
130.67 2021 129.86
2020
2020 IMF
3.3 2021 6.0
11
2021
6.4 2021
GDP 2020 31.4
33.4 FRB
2020 11 2021
2021 FRB
2020 GDP 3.5 2019 2.2
2020 1.5 2021 2.6
30 2020 21,917 2021 32,982 50
10 2020 0.67 2021 1.74 1.07
2020 GDP 6.7 1999 2020
2020 GDP 11.6
2020
2020 GDP 12.5 2020 10
2020 10 12 2021
GDP 0.7 0.6 ECB 2020 12 2020
PEPP 2022
8,500 2021 PEPP 2021
2020 12 EU EU
2021 EU
2020
GDP 2.3 2020
PCR
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2021 18,402 28,334
16,394 26,429 866 953
171,967 13,639
171,229 27,707 1,067

9,759 61 2,348 2021
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©
2021 2,723,065 61,869
117,888 138,223 2021 68,841
2,758,918
35,853 6,972
(D
2021 557 600
278,897 38,482
278,974
38,332
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454 113,000 -
113,000 - -
IFRS
100
2021 31
13
113,000 100
113,000 100
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2021 31

2021 31 2020 31
3,27 18,402 28,334
3,27 (16,394) (26,429)
2,008 1,905

4,27 (866) (953)
5 78 93
6,27 171,967 (13,639)
7,27 (171,229) 27,707
8 1,195 24
3,153 15,137

9,10 (188) (169)
11,27 (1,898) (5,209)
(2,086) (5,378)

1,067 9,759

12 (61) (2,348)
1,006 7,411
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2021 2020

31 31
5,13,23,24, - 1
13,14,23,24,25,27 57,348 74,831
16 3 4
57,351 74,836
5,13,23,25,27 2,457,199 2,442,667
13,14,23,24,25,27 125,801 53,545
5,13,15,27 557 600
12 122 -
5,13,16,27 117,888 256,111
2,701,567 2,752,923
2,758,918 2,827,759
17,26 6,658 6,117
26 1,321 1,321
26 11,390 14,892
18 16,484 20,495
35,853 42,825
13,19,23,24,26,27 242,203 315,818
13,20,23,24,26,27 797,915 917,855
13,14,23,24,25,27 144,167 182,263
12 2,579 3,062
1,186,864 1,418,998
13,23,26,27 896,182 781,313
13,19,23,26,27 12,534 64,332
13,20,23,24,26,27 536,694 413,668
13,14,23,24,25,27 48,569 98,322
12 - 51
13,21,27 42,222 8,250
1,536,201 1,365,936
2,723,065 2,784,934
2,758,918 2,827,759
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6,117 1,321 12,607 2,285 20,495 42,825
- - - - 1,006 1,006

- - (2,961) - 283 (2,678)

- - (2,961) - 1,289 (1,672)
541 - - (541) - _

- - - - (5,300) (5,300)
6,658 1,321 9,646 1,744 16,484 35,853
6,383 1,321 8,624 2,019 12,868 31,215
- - - - 7,411 7,411
- - 3,983 - 216 4,199
- - 3,083 - 7,627 11,610
(266) - - 266 - -
6,117 1,321 12,607 2,285 20,495 42,825

283
2,961
216 3,983

43/207



2021 31 2020 31
1,006 7,411
148,669 (100,471)
(483) 2,801
(33) 25
13 (14,531) (149, 856)
114,869 205,632
13,14,23,24 (54,773) (3,380)
13,14,23,24 (87,849) 83,286
16 138,101 (83,415)
21 33,921 (605)
278,897 (38,482)
13,19,23 - -
13,20,23,24 792,426 515,136
13,19,23 (121,643) (121,557)
13,20,23,24 944,457) (355, 247)
18 (5,300) -
(278,974) 38,332
an (150)
34 (29)
600 779
15 557 600
2021 31 2020 31
(17,127) (25,812)
18,560 30,148
12 (516) (424)
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2020
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2021 31
380,150 (121,643) (1,635) (2,135) 254,737
1,331,523 (152,031) 155,117 - 1,334,609
1,711,673 (273,674) 153,482 (2.135) 1,589,346

2019 2020 31
502,820 (121,557) (4,539) 3,426 380,150
1,275,190 159,889 (103,556) - 1,331,523
1,778,010 38,332 (108,095) 3,426 1,711,673

45/207



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NHI NHI
1096HA
Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam
33221661
NHI
2021 15
2.1
2021 31 EU
IFRS

2.2

24
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IFRS
1ASB
IFRS 1AS
IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
1ASB IFRS
IAS 39
1AS 1AS

1ASB
I1AS

IAS

EU
IFRS
IFRS I1AS
EU 2020
2019 IFRS
EU
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2020
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IAS 39 IFRS IFRS IFRS 16
- IFRS IAS 39 IFRS IFRS
IFRS
1ASB
IFRS
IFRS 16
IBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
1ASB
a)
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2022
EU
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2020

IAS 37

1ASB

1AS IFRS

1AS

EU

IAS

2021 12 1ASB

2023
EU

IAS 12

2023
EU
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16

21
27

27
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2021 31 2020 31
18,392 28,334
10 -
18,402 28,334
2021 31 2020 31
(143) (209)
(43) an
(16,205) (26,142)
3) (€5)
(16,394) (26,429)
2021 31 2020 31
(866) (953)
(866) (953)
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14

BBB+
BB+

cC

BBB-
BB-
B+

2021 31
557 -
2,458,808 111
115,240 -
2,574,605 111
2020 31
600 -
2,444,515 189
254,400 -
2,699,515 189
2021 31 2020 31
183,149 128,376
(38,840) (3,960)
144,309 124,416

ccc
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2021 31
ARA / A- 276,385 - - 276,385
BBB+ / BBB- 2,182,423 - - 2,182,423
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cee - - - -
cC/D - - - -
2,458,808 - - 2,458,808
(111) - - (111)
2,458,697 - - 2,458,697
2020 31
ARA / A- 263,552 - - 263,552
BBB+ / BBB- 2,180,963 - - 2,180,963
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cee - - - -
cC/D - - - -
2,444,515 - - 2,444,515
(189) - - (189)
2,444,326 - - 2,444,326
2021 31
2020
188 1 189
(188) @ (189)
110 1 111
2021 31
110 1 111
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2020 31

2019
252 30 282
(252) (30) (282)
188 1 189

2020 31

188 1 189

PD
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2021 31 2020 31
168,031 (26,282)
3,936 12,643
171,967 (13,639)

23

2021 31 2020 31
(171,229) 27,707
(171,229) 27,707
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10

14

1

27

2021 31 2020 3
27 1,053 -
142 24
1,195 24
2021 31 2020 31
(143) (131)
@n 19
(18) (19)
(188) (169)
14 14
2021 31 2020 31
27 - (3.745)
(486) (482)
(1,202) (832)
(55) (48)
(35) (20)
112) an
®) (5)
(1,898) (5,209)
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2018
APA
APA

1,053
NHI

25

25

21.7

25

oOoOooodn

2022 31
2019
NHI APA
NHI
3,745
2021 31 2020 31
(267) (795)
1 67
86 (10)
130 -
11) (1,610)
(61) (2,348)
2021 31 2020 31
1,067 9,759
(267) (2,440)
1 67
- 41
86 (20)
130 -
11 4
(61) (2,348)
25.96 23.96
2021 25
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(51) (66)
516 424
(266) (728)
an 319
122 (51)
(3,062) a72)
809 (10)
(445) (1,610)
130 -
(1) (1,270)
(2,579) (3.,062)
2021 31 2020 31
(3,215) (3,494)
610 387
26 45
(2,579) (3,062)
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13

16

21

16

21

2021 31
2,457,199 - - - 2,457,199
- 183,149 - - 183,149
557 - - - 557
115,240 - - - 115,240
2,572,996 183,149 - - 2,756,145
- - 254,737 - 254,737
- - - 1,334,609 1,334,609
- - 896,182 - 896,182
- 192,736 - - 192,736
- - 38,840 - 38,840
- 192,736 1,189,759 1,334,609 2,717,104

2020 31
2,442,668 - - - 2,442,668
- 128,376 - - 128,376
600 - - - 600
254,400 - - - 254,400
2,697,668 128,376 - - 2,826,044
- - 380,150 - 380,150
- - - 1,331,523 1,331,523
- - 781,313 - 781,313
- 280,585 - - 280,585
- - 3,960 - 3,960
- 280,585 1,165,423 1,331,523 2,777,531

65/207

EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn



14

2021 31 2020 31

27,068 27,214

34,883 52,122

39,223 42,351

79,248 5,517

2,727 1,172

183,149 128,376

111,642 103,757

28,107 42,173

48,912 95,284

2,383 25,773

1,692 13,598

192,736 280,585

2021 31 2020 31

1,144,041 1,209,039
801,529 1,132,843

506,968 445,554

37,000 255,100

223,162 257,329
2,712,700 3,299,865

16 21
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16

5,27

17

454
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113,000

454

oOoOooodn

315,000

2021 31 2020 31
2021 31 2020 31
115,240 254,400
2,648 1,711
117,888 256,111
ISDA
2021 31 2020 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
129.775 119.235
6,658 6,117
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2021 31 2020 31
8,402 8,402
6,658 6,117
1,744 2,285
373
18
5,300
19
a.
2021 31 2020 31
315,818 439,064
(46,207) (49,408)
(25,598) (73,361)
(1,810) (77)
242,203 315,818
b.
2021 31 2020 31
64,332 63,756
(75,436) (72,149)
25,598 73,361
(1,960) (636)
12,534 64,332
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5,254

143,674
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2021 31 2020 31
917,855 1,057,153
243,222 313,675
(176,719) (161,508)
(206,246) (239, 469)
1,162 (36,337)
16,110 (10,591)
3,375 (5,069)
(844) 1
797,915 917,855
2021 31 2020 31
413,668 218,037
549,204 201,461
(767,738) (193,739)
206,246 239,469
12,378 (6,661)
124,004 (46,084)
(164) (155)
(904) 1,340
536,694 413,668
3,239
12,862
16,101
97,399
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5,27
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1SDA
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2021 31 2020 31
38,840 3,960
3,382 4,290
42,222 8,250
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oOoOooodn
22
241,613
235,000
23
CRO
CFO EMB
EMB
EMB
GIRMC GIRMC
GIRMC
GIRMC

EMB

GIRMC EMB
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GIRMC GPC

CRO
LCC

GIRMC

LCC
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CRM

CRM

NHI
NHI  S&P
BBB+

S&P
NHI

1SDA

2.3 e

27

EMB

30
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@ (©))
(©)) *
®) ®

EMB NHI  CFO EMB

64.06 58.82
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2021 31
30 90
30 90
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
- 740,458 1,562,685 156,984 - - 2,460,127
2020 31
30 90
30 90
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
- 775,318 1,469,284 201,079 - - 2,445,681
2021 31
30 90
30 90
- 4,301 1,072 9,563 66,820 195,677 277,433
231,317 23,034 130,243 194,460 456,227 491,142 1,526,423
- 314,057 583,669 - - - 897,726
- 237,180 4,434 - - - 241,614
231,317 578,572 719,418 204,023 523,047 686,819 2,943,196
231,317 578,572 719,418 204,023 523,047 686,819 2,943,196
2020 31
30 90
30 90
- 5,916 18,366 42,398 81,954 266,648 415,282
188,908 17,686 118,017 142,172 502,823 626,679 1,596,285
- 163,850 409,867 211,952 - - 785,669
- 235,000 - - - - 235,000
188,908 422,452 546,250 396,522 584,777 893,327 3,032,236
188,908 422,452 546,250 396,522 584,777 893,327 3,032,236
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2021 31
30 )
30 )
76,016 1,632 6,740 25,578 33,992 50,884 194,842
76,016 1,632 6,740 25,578 33,992 50,884 194,842
- 1,747,518 314,343 19,831 102,355 111,421 2,295,468
- (1,735,458) (312,001) (19,850) (127,115) (114,159)  (2,308,673)
- 12,060 2,252 (19) (24,760) (2,738) (13,205)
76,016 13,692 8,992 25,559 9,232 48,146 181,637
2020 31
30 )
30 )
(33,165) 1,933 3,705 14,267 36,977 74,804 98,521
(33,165) 1,933 3,705 14,267 36,977 74,804 98,521
- 1,684,417 372,772 13,306 103,520 156,641 2,330,656
- (1,688,847) (363,339) (14,318) (130,361) (140,353)  (2,337,218)
- (4,430) 9,433 (1,012) (26,841) 16,288 (6.562)
(33,165) (2.497) 13,138 13,255 10,136 91,002 91,959
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(€))
@) ORM
©)
EMB GIRMC
ORM 1) 2) 3)

ORM

ORM
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2021 31
242,203 237,207 -
2020 31
1 - -
315,818 299,347 -
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2021 31 2020 31
183,149 - 144,028 39,121 128,376 - 78,954 49,422
27,068 - 18,312 8,756 27,214 - 18,226 8,988
34,883 - 10,224 24,659 52,122 - 13,246 38,876
39,223 - 34,507 4,716 42,351 - 40,982 1,369
79,248 - 79,248 - 5,517 - 5,517 -
2,727 - 1,737 990 1,172 - 982 190
183,149 - 144,028 39,121 128,376 - 78,953 49,423

2021 31 2020 31
192,736 - 151,685 41,051 280,585 - 226,230 54,355
111,642 - 102,546 9,096 103,757 - 94,231 9,526
28,107 - 2,745 25,362 42,173 - 5,092 37,081
48,912 - 42,659 6,253 95,284 - 87,863 7,421
2,383 - 2,383 - 25,773 - 25,773 -
1,692 - 1,352 340 13,598 - 13,271 327
1,334,609 - 930,877 403,732 1,331,523 - 1,145,038 186,485
1,527,345 - 1,082,562 444,783 1,612,108 - 1,371,268 240,840
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OooooOodd
2021 31
49,423 54,355 186,485
* (26,063) (17,393) 34,340
- - 433,376
16,901 (6,902) (257,733)
407 12,259 92,108
(1,547) (1,268) (84,844)
39,121 41,051 403,732
7,609 (4,016) (9,452)
2020 31
58,662 61,623 185,737
* (13,717) (403) 4,873
- - 199,977
7,041 (4,545) (136,432)
1,765 4,998 31,330
(4,328) (7.318) (99,000)
49,423 54,355 186,485
4,372 (7,171) 3,352
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OooooOodd
oTC
407 1,765 12,259 4,998
448 1,630
11,683
4,561
1,547 4,328 1,269 7,318
1,220 4,010
632 6,776
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DCF

VMVG

CFO

Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV

1PV

1PV
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2021 31
*

8,756 9,096 DCF ) 12.09-13.03%
24,659 25,362 DCF 0.12-2.23%
) 9.57-13.12%
(bp) 29.60-77.01
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
4,716 6,253 DCF 0.00-6.77%
) 13.83-82.31%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.69-0.96
990 340 DCF 0.24-1.39%%
35-35%
- 403,732 DCF 0.12-2.06%
) 9.57-13.12%
(bp) 29.60-63.94
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98

39,121 444,783
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OooooOodd
2020 31
*
8,988 9,526 DCF %) 12.48-13.05%
38,876 37,081 DCF -0.13-1.12%
%) 8.81-13.80%
(bp) 29.95-103.23
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98
1,369 7,421 DCF 0.00-9.28%
%) 17.22-76.40%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.71-0.91
190 327 DCF 0.10-1.99%
35-35%
- 186,485 DCF 0.02-0.76%
) 8.81-13.07%
(bp) 29.95-57.50
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.25-0.98

49,423 240,840
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347 512

2021 31 2020 31

512 640

(165) (128)
347 512
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25
2021 31
(€) @ (©)

157,326 157,326 (69,935) - 87,391

265,825 265,825 - - 265,825

1,840 1,840 - - 1,840

424,991 424,991 (69,935) - 355,056

176,919 176,919 (69,246) (107,673) -

690 690 (690) - -

177,609 177,609 (69,936) (107,673) -

2020 31
() @ (©)

67,409 67,409 (66,324) - 1,085

261,016 261,016 - - 261,016

328,425 328,425 (66,324) - 262,101

269,785 269,785 (62,364) (207,005) 416

3,960 3,960 (3,960) - -

273,745 273,745 (66,324) (207,005) 416
()
@
®

1SDA
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2021 31 2020 31
6,658 6,117
1,321 1,321
1,744 2,285
9,723 9,723

254,737 380,150
242,203 315,818
12,534 64,332
1,334,609 1,331,523
797,915 917,855
536,694 413,668
896,182 781,312
896,182 781,312
2,495,251 2,502,708
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27

i. NHI

1,862,651

235,000
52

1,053

406

157,326

21

1SDA

oOoOooodn

12,532
11,029 ( ) NHI
1,880,106
NHI 233,300
NHI
65
NHI
862 944
NHI 862 944
11 NHI
1,053
NHI 3,745
22
NHI
423
NHI 203 206
5,867
17,305
594,659 562,751
8,313
26 158
176,919 67,409
269,785 ISDA
16
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2,712
11,986
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14,698 15,445

4,363
11,082

162
106

92
23

16 21
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29 -

1,006

2021

20
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

INCOME STATEMENT

Interest and similar income
Interast and similar expanse
et inferest income

Fae and commission axpansa

Cradit impairment gain

Nat trading incoma/(lass)

Met gain/{loss} on financial liabilities
designated at lair value through profit or loss
Other operating gains

Net operating income

Salaries and social charges

General and administrative axpansas
Total operating expenses

Profit before tax
Taxation exponse

Profit for the year

Hote

27
327

427

627

Tar

810
11,27

91/207

2021 2020
Millions of JPY Millions. of JPY
18,402 28,334
(16.394) (26.429)
2,008 1,805
(866) (953)
78 93
171,967 {13.639)
{171,229) 27,707
1,195 24
3,153 15137
(188) (169)
(1,898) (5,209)
(2,086) [5.378)
1,067 5,759
(61) (2.348)
1,008 7411
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Mems that will not be reclassifisd to income statement;
Change in fair value attributable to change in the

cradit risk of financial Rabilites designated at fair value
through profit or loss (afler tax)

Other comprehensive Income for the year, after
tax

Total comprehensive Income for the year

92/207

oOoOooodn

2021 2020
Milliong of JPY Milligns of JEY
1,006 7411
(2.678) 4,199
{2.678) 4,199
(1,672) 11,610
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2021 2020

Mote Millions of JBY Millions of JBY
Mon-current assels
Loans and advances to affiliales 5135324 - 1
Darivative financial assats 13,14,23,24,25.27 57348 T4.831
Other non-current assats 16 3 4
Tatal non-current assats 57.351 74,836
Current assets
Leans and advances to affiliates 503232527 2457193 2,442 BET
Dearivative financial assets 13,14,23,24,25,27 125,801 53,545
Cash and cash equivalents 5131527 557 600
Income tax receivable 12 122 -
Other current assals 5.13,16.27 117.888 256111
Tatal currant agsets 2,701, 567 2,752,923
Total assets 2,758,918 2,827,758
Shareholder's equity and liabilities
Shareholder's equity
Isswed and paid-up capital 17.26 6,658 6117
Share pramium 2 1,321 1,33
Reserve 26 11,390 14,892
Ratained Barnings L] 16,484 20,485
Tatal shareholder's eqguity 35,853 42,825
Man-current liabilities
Db imsued and athar barrowing 116,23, 36 27 242,203 a15.818
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss 13,20, 23.24.26.27 7E7.915 917,855
Darivative financial liabilties 13,14,23,24,25.27 144 167 182,263
Deferred tax liabilties 12 2.57% 3.062
Tatal non-current labilites 1,185,884 1,418,998
Current liabilities
Bemowing from affiliates 13.23.26.27 896,182 781313
Dabt issued and othar barrowing 13,1923 2627 12,534 B4.332
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss 12.20,23,24,26.27 536,694 413,688
Derivative financial liabilties 13,1423, 24 2527 48,569 48,322
Income tax payable 12 - 51
Other liabilities 132127 42,8222 8.250
Taotal current liakilities 1,536,201 1,365,936
Tatal liabilfies 2,723,085 2,784,934
Total shareholder's equity and liabilities 2,758,918 2,827,759

Statement of Financial Pasition is presented atter appropriation of profit.
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:
Met profit {loss) from financing activities
Met gainf{loss) from movements in deferred tax
Others

Cperating assets and operating liabilities:
Increase in loans and advances to affiliates
Increase in borrowing from affiiates
Increase in derivative financial assets
Increase/{decrease) in derivative financial
liabilities
{Increase)/decrease in olher operating assels
Increase/idecrease) in olher operating liabilities
Mot cash flows used in operating activities

Financing activities

Proceseds from debt issued and ather barrowing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and ather borrowing
Redempticn of financial liabiities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividends paid to shareholders

Het cash flows from financing activities

Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Nat fareign exchange difference
Cash and cash aquivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows

Interast paid
Interest received
Taxes paid
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13

13,14,23,24

13042324

1]
21

13,1823

13,2023 24
1315923

13,20,23.24
18

2021 2020
Millions of JPY Millicns of JPY
1,006 7411
148,869 (100,471)
{483) 2,891
{33) 25
(14,531) {148,866)
114 869 205,632
154,773 {3,380)
{87 849} 83,288
138,101 {83.415)
33,921 (605)
278,607 {38,482}
T2 428 516,138
{121 643) (121,557)
{244, 457) (355 247)
{5,300 -
(278,974) 38332
(77) (150)
34 (29)
200 774
557 600
2021 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
(17,127} (28,812}
18,560 30,148
(516) (424}
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Memura Europe Finance NV, (the "Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Ing,
("MHI"), a company incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of America and Singapore,
which is also the ulimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Metherlands, is a limited liability company
under the Dutch law and its registered affice is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1098 HA Amstardam,
the Metherlands (Chamber of Commarze number 33221681),

The Company's principal activity is to act as a funding entity for NHI and its subsidianies (collectively the
“Momura Graup”).

Tha Company's financial statements for the yaar ended 31 March 2021 shall be submitted 1o the Annual
General Meeling of Shareholders on 15 July 2021 for adopltion. The sharefolder's meeting can reject the
financial statements but cannot amend them.

2. Accounting policies
21  Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared in
aceordance with Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRST) as adopted by the European
Uricn {"ELF). The financial statements have also bean prepared in accordance with the requiremants
in Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Givil Code.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments and financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all been
measurad al fair value,

The financial statemants are presented in Japanase Yen ("JPY") and all valees are rounded to the
nearast millien (“Milons of JPY'} except where atherwise stated.

2.2  Signilicant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial staterents requires management 1o make judgaments,

estimates and assumplions that atiect the reported amount of revenues, expensas, assels and habilfties,
and the accompanying disclosures.

Significant amount of judgements and estimates ware applied to the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial liabilties. Various valuation techniques ans used to daterming lair values of financial assals
and financial liabilities, where these fair values cannot be derved from an active market, Observable market
data is used in the valuation modals as far as feasible. If no observable data is available, a degree of
judgement is required to determine fair walues. Detailed information about the fair value of financial
instruments and valuation techniques are s&l oul in Mole 24,

Impairment of inancial assats

The Company assesses expected credit losses lor all loans and other debt financial assets not held at
fair value throwgh profit or loss, together with loan commitments and financial guarantes contracis on a
forward-looking basis. The Company recognises a loss allowance at each repording date. Detailed
infarmation about the judgements and estimates made by the Company when calculating expected
credit loszes are sat o in Note 2.3
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
23  Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Faorelgn currencles

The financial statements are presented in JPY, which is the functional and presentation curmency of the
Company.

Foreign currency transactions during the period are franslated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction.

Subasqgeent ta nltial recsognition monetary lems ane translated at clesing rate and nof-monetary ilems at
historical spet rate at each staternent of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and kosses on
financial assets and financial liabilities that are monatary assels and monetary liabilities are recognised in
the income statement.

b}  Operating income
i} Interest income and axpense

Interest income and expensa for all financial mstruments, except lor those classified as derivatives held for
trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or kess, are recognised under Inferest
and similar incowme or inferest and similar expense using the effective imerest rate ("EIR") method.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability {or a group
of assals and liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interes! expense over the ralavant
periods. The EIR is the rale that exaclly discounts the expected fulure cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, 1o the net
carrying amount of the instrument. This caleulation takes into account the impact of all fees and
commissions, paid or received, directly aftributable to the transactions, and discounts or premiums that
are intagral part of the EIR method,

iy Mat fess and commission incoma

Loan grigination fees are recognised in the income statement as an adjustment to the yield on the financial
assels carmed at amortised cost using the EIR method,

Upfront fees received and paid on dervative financial instruments are recognised as parl of the initial fair
value measurament of the relaled financial instrumant.

c) Fair value of financial instruments

Some of the fimancial instruments of the Company are held at fair value, A description of the Company's
policies with regards to #s application of fair value measurements fo significant financial instruments is
as follows:

iy  Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet
date. For other financial instruments which are measuned at amortised cost, fair values are disclosed in
Mote 24,

Fair value is the price that would be receivad to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery
transaclion belween market participants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumgtion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
In the principal market for the asset or kability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The prinzipal or the most advantagecus market must be accessible by the Company.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where quated market prices or broker'dealer quatations are nat available for financial instruments,
prices for similar instruments or valuation pricing modeds are considered in the determination of fair
value, Such financial instruments are valued wsing models with significant unobservable inputs such as
corrglation, long-dated volatildy, or other uncbservable inputs.  Valuation pricing modals consider
contraciual terms, position size, underlying asset prices, interest rates, dividend rates, time valee,
volatility and other statistical measuremenis for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
characterislics. These models alse incorporate adjustments relating to marked liquidity adjusimenis.
These adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
technique used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of Company-specific inputs
which are unobsarvable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amaount and timing of unrealised
gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing moedels or underlying assumgtions
could preduce different financial resulis. Any changes in the fied income, equity, and foreign exchange
and commodity markets can impact the Company’s estimates of fair value in the future, potentially
affacting trading gains and losses and also gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss, The Company's estimates of fair value may invelve greater subjectivity due
te the lack of iransparent market data available upan which 1o Base assumptions of underying valuation
pricing modals.

The Company applies exceplion in IFRS 13,48 to measure the fair value of financial assets and financial
liakilities on the basis of mid-price, For hybrid instruments where embedded derivatives are separated
and financial instruments which are designated through prafit or loss, the exposure on such instruments
iz ofizet by the hedging derivalives,

The Company does not apply hedge accounting and all references to hedging in the notes 1o the
financial statements are to economic hedging.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instrumems that are classified as held
for frading are recognised under Net frading income/{ioss).

(i}  Recognition of day 1 gains and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price {(i.e. the fair value of
consideration given or received). Howeaver, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
a valuation pricing model incorparating only observable parameters in the market or on other observable
cumant market trangactions in the same instrument, without medification or repackaging. Whaere such
valuation technigues are used to derive fair values from markel cbservable inpuls, the difference
batween fair value and the transaction price is inilially recoegnised in Ihe income stalement,

Valuation techniques incorporating significant uncbservable parameters may alse be used to determing
fair valua at incaption. In such cases, the difference batween the transaction price and medal value is
enly recognised in the income statement when the inputs become observable or when the instrument
is derecognised.

(i)  Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Company seeks fo minimize the markel risks by entering imo derivalive agreements to
sconomically hadge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging derivative and the
associated note have the same perfarmance which olfset each other, thus by applying the fair value
cption ("FWO7) to notes the Company expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation
velatility.

Starting from 1 April 2018, the Company applies tha FYO to all newly issued notes under IFRS 9. The
Company manages and evaluates performance of financial liabilties (issued notes) in such a way that the
measurement of the portfolio of nates at fair value through profit or loss provides maore relevant information
for risk managemen! purposas and transparent understanding of the Company’s financial statemeants.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
d}  Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 9 are divided into three classifications; those measuned
at amortisad cost, those maasured at fair value through profit or loss and those measured at fair value
thrawgh sther comprehensive income,

Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss, and all other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost unless the FVO is applied.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognifion except equity
instruments and derivatives based on a combination of the entity's business model for managing the
assels and the instruments’ contraciual cash flow characteristics. Even though the Company's financial
asgsets may meat the criteria 1o be classified at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehansive
income, the Company may, at initial recognition, apply the FVO to those financial assels il deing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referrad to
as "accounting mismateh”) that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or labilities or recegnising
gains and losses on them on differant bases.

03 Fimancial assets

IFRS 9 requires all financial assals, excepl equily instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the enlity's business medel for managing the assels and the instruments’
contractual cash flow charactenstics. A financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at
amorlized cost, unless designated under FVO, if the financial asset is held in a Hold to Collect buginess
madal and the contractual cash flows are Solely Payments of Principal and Intarest,

Under this measurement calegory, the financial asset is measured at fair value at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amoriization using the effective interest
method of any difference betwean that iniial amount and the maturity amouwnt ard adjusted for any
impairment allowance.

Business model:
There are three business models identiied under IFRS 3 for financial assats:
— Haold o Collect - Financial assets held with the cbjective to collect contractual cash flows.

— Hold to Collect and Sell - Financial assets held with the objective of bath collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets,

= Other - Financial assets held with trading intent or that do not meet the “Held to Collect™ and “Hald to
Callect and Sall” qualdying criteria.

Tha Company determines its business model af the lavel that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objeclive. Factors considered by the Company in determining
the buginass model lor a group of assats include how the cash flows from these assets wene collected,
how risks are assessed and managed, how the assel's performance is evaluated and reported to key
managemant parsonnel and the frequency, value and timing of sales.

Tha Company manages a portfolio of financial assets through the Held 1o Collect business model wheare
all of the following crileria are met:
- The portfolic is net held with trading intent or net managed on a fair value basis;

- The portfolic of financial asssls i managed 1o realise cash flows solaly through collecting contractual
payments over the life of the financial assets rather than managing the overall return on the porthalio by
both holding and selling financial assets; and

Any sales of financial assets are expectad to be infraquent or insignificant.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To meat the Hold 1o Collect business modal, the porticlic of financial assets are to be held by the
Company with the strategy of collecting cash flows from the financial assets specified by confractual
terms of the instrument. A financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost where the confractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interast.

Principal for purpose of the SPFI test is defined as the fair value of the debt instrument at initial
recognition and therefore the coniractual cash flow characteristics is determined based on a comparison
of confractual cash flows to the amount aciually invested. It is not necessarily the contractual par amount
of the debt instrumaent.

The most significant elements of interest within a basic lending arrangement are that i} is consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. Interest may alse inclede a preld margin.

(i)  Financial labilities at amortised cost

Financial liabiliies at amortised cost include the host contract of cerain medium term notes that ane
bifurcated and cther borowings. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised on the
date when the Company becomes a parly to the contract. After inlial measurement, these instrumants
are subsequently measured at amorised cost using the EIR method.

(i)  Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by management as
at fair value through profit or loss upen initial recognition when the designation eliminates, or
significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or liabilities or recognizing gains or lesses on them on a different basis.

Thesa instruments are measured initially at fair value and transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss. For these instruments, fair value changes atiributable to the Company's credi risk are presented
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss, thereby eliminating volatiity in
profit or lass in relation to own credi adjusiments. All ofher lair value changes are presented in profit or
loss. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs
associated 1o the finandcal Rabilities designated at fair value thraugh profit or less are recognised under
Net gainilfoss) on financial labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, except for the
curancy transkation affect which is included in Nat frading incomaloss).

Loan commitments designated as financial liabilities at fair value through preffl or loss are within the
scope of IFRS 8. Thesa lean commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a pary 1o the contract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
repored under Nel gainfiess) on financial Kabiltfes designated al fair value through prolil or loss.

vl Danvative financial instrumants

Financial instruments at fair value thraugh prof or loss include dervative financial instrumants hebd for
trading. Financial assefs and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if (1) they are acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near tarm; (2) on initial recognition
they are part of a portfclio of identified financial instrumeants that are managed together and for which
thera is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking; or (3) they are derivatives, except
for a derivative that is a financial guarantes or a designated and effective hedging instrumeant.

The Company uses derivatives to economically hedge its interest and foreign exchange. All derivatives
are recognised on the date when the Company bacomas a party to the contract, Dervatives habd for
trading are initially and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or losg, Derivatives with positive and negative fair values are presented as assets and liabilities,
respactively, in the statement of financial position,

A derivalive embedded in a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host that is not a
financial asset is accounted for as a separate derivative if (1) its economic characteristics and risks are
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nat closely ralated to those of tha host; (2) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embadded
dervative would meet the definifion of a derivative; and (3) the hybrd instrument is not measuwred at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profil or loss.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or
less, iransaction cosis thal are direcily attributable 1o the acquisiion or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights fo receive cash flow from ihe assel have expired or
when the Company has fransferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company
has transtemed substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. A financial lability is derecognised
‘when the cbligation under the liabilty is discharged, cancelled or expiras.

When an existing financial liabiliy is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, of the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the onginal liability and a recegnition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carmying amounts is recognised in the income statement,

e} Impairment

Under IFRS 9, the Company is required 1o record a loss allowance for expected credit losses for all
loans and other debt instruments not held at fair value throwgh profit or loss, together with loan
commiiments and financial guaraniee confracts. The loss allowance is measured based on the
axpectad credil lossas that result from default events on a financial instrumeant that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date unless there has been a significant increase in credit rick since
erigination, in which case, the loss allowance is measured based on the expected credit losses that
result from all possible delault events over the expected life of a financial instrumant,

Application of the general expected credit loss ("ECL") impairment model:

Expected credit losses shoukd be determined using all reasonable and supportable imformation which
iz reasenably available at the Company's reporting date without undue cast or effer, including
infarmation abowt past events, curment conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The
infarmation used should reflect factors that are specific 1o the abligor, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions al the Company's
repariing date, Information that is available lor financial reporing purposes is always considered to be
available without undue cost or affor.

The general ECL impairmen model is used to measure expected credit losses against the majority of
financial instruments held by the Company which are subject to impairment through the ECL impairment
maodal under IFRS 9.

Expected crodit losses represent the difference batwean the cash flows that the Company is entitled to
recaive in accordance with the contractual terms of the financial instrumeant and the cash flows that the
Campany ultimately expects 1o receive based on lollowing medel.
The measurerment of expected credil lesses under the ECL impairment madel reflects:
+ Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;
+ The time value of meney; and

#« Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions,

102/207



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lifatime expected cradit losses represant expected cradil losses that would result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the financial instrument whereas 12 month expected credit
leszas are the portion of lifetime expected credit losses thal represant the expected credit losses that
rasult from default evenis on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months atter tha
reparting date.

In order to determine whether 12 menth o [ifetime expected credit losses are used, each financial asset
and off-balance sheet financial instrumant baing individually or collectively assessed for impairmant is
classified at each reporting dale imo one of following three stages of credit quality detericration since
the financial asset was initially recognised.

+ Stage 1 = Performing financial assets for which there has been no significant detericration in credit
quality since inifial recognition;

+ Stage 2 — Underperforming financial assats for which there has been a significant deterioration in
credit quality since initial recognition but which are not credit-impaired; and

+ Stage 3 — Non-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant detericration in
credit quality since inifial recognition and which have become credit-impaired,

A tinancial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recegnition is inilially classified into stage 1
and is typically subsequently continuously monitored to determine whether a significant increase in
credil risk has occurmed, at which point the financial instrument is reclassified to stage 2. A determination
of whether a significant increase in credit risk has cccurred at each reporting date will primarily be
through a comparison of Momura Group's internal cradit rating applied 1o the financial instrument at
acquisition, origination or isswance and the internal credit rating currently assigned to the financial
instrument at the reporting date. A financial instrument will be reclassified into stage 2 where the intemal
credit rating has declined by more than a specific number of notches (one to fouwr) depending on the
leval of rating assigned at inftial recognition. If thera i3 a further detenoration in credit quality such that
the financial instrument becomes cradit-impaired, the financial instrument is then reclassified into stage
3

Internal ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid 1o long-term capability and certainty
of debl repayment (creditwort hiness) in addition to the lundamental conditions (lundamentals) of a given
chligor or facility. Internal ratings are reviewed regularly and on an ad-hoc basis, 1o ensure that the
craditworthiness of a given cbligor will be duly and timely taken into account.

A stage 3 financial assetl can only be classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1
when it no longer meets the definition of being credit-impaired, namely when it is no longer probable
that the Company will not ba able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with
the ariginal or modified contractual terms of the financial asset.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
eslimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since origination or purchase namely
and it is no longer probable that the Company will be able to collect all principal and interast amounts
due in accordance with the confractual terms of the financial asset. The Company considers a financial
instrument delaulted (which is fully aligned with the definition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of
an abligor to make payments in full and on time of any financial obligations, makedly disadvantagecus
modification 10 a contractual term compared with the existing obligation, bankruptey filings,
administration, receivership, liquidation or ather winding-up or cessafion of business of an abligor or
cther similar situations. In addition, there is a rebuttable presumption that regardless of the abeve
definition, default is deemed 1o occur and a financial instrument is credit-impaired whan the financial
instrument i 90 days or more past due.

A financial instrument will continue o be cradit-impaired until the obliger cures the reasons for credit-
impairment or there has been a sustained cbservable period of repayment performance on the financial
instrurment. Datermination of what constilutes a sustained pariod of repayment performance by the
cbligor depends on the nature of the financial instrument but will typically be for a period of & months or
riGre.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tha allowance for expected cradil losses recognised against stage 1 financial assets is determined
using 12 month expecied credit losses. Conversely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 2 financial
assals is based on lifatime expected cradit losses.

Credit-impaired financial instruments individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when
furthar cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonable means of recovering
cutstanding principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on
factors such as the occurrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial position such that the
cbligor can no lenger pay the obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay
amounts due.

A write off of a financial instrument such as a loan, receivable or debt security reduces the gross carrying
amount of the financial instrument. Write-offs are initially recognised against any existing allowance for
axpecied credil losses and can relate to a financial instrument in its entirely or to a porion of it.

Recoveres ane recognised as a reduction of the provision for expected cradit losses recognised thraugh
gamings during the reporting period,

For sfage 1 and stage 2 financial instruments, interest income is recognised during the reporting paricd
al an amount datermined by applying the effective intarest rate 1o the gross carrying amount of the
financial instrument,

For stage 3 financial assats, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate ("EIR”) to
net carrying amount of the financial assel namely the gross carrying amaount less the allowance for
expecied cradil losses,

Measurement of expected cradit losses:

The measuremeant of expected credit losses through the general ECL impairment model is typically
determined within the Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow models depending on
the relevant staging of the financial instrument. A loss rate model measures expected credit losses for
an individual or portfolio of similar financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated
through an estimate of the probability of default ("PD") of the obligor and loss given defaull "LGD")
which is applied fo the expected credit exposure of the obligor at default ("CEAD"). CEAD represents
the expected amount of credil exposung (Le amoun owed to the Company) at the paint that the financial
instrument defaults.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument and by internal Momura credit rating applied
to the financial instrument. PD inputs used by the Company are sourced from indusiry data and
validated based on historical experience. PD inputs are prepared by referring te S&F's historic rating
migration data and PD is calculated ower the next 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over
the antire lifatima for stage 2 and 3 instrumeants.

Forward-looking information is incorporated into the PD inpuls by forecasting economic scenarios and
adjusiing the base case inpuis for at least one oplimistic and pessimistic scenario.

LGD inputs are determined by class of financial instrumen? based on historical experience of loss
recovery rates for similar financial instruments and ather relevant industry data. LGD inputs are adjusted
to reflact the impact of collateral and integral credit enhancaments.

For revolving and nan-revalving loan commitments, the relevant absolute measure of CEAD reprasents
an estimate of the telal ameum of the facility which will be drawn by the obligor by the time of default.
This theretore includes any portion of the facility currently funded and an additional adjustment based
on a conversion factor to estimate of further amoumts which may be drawn.

Cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancemants that are integral to contractual

terms of the financial instrument and not recognised separately by the Company are included in the
measurement of expected credit losses,
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f) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a
legally enforceabla right to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company intends to
settle the financial asset and financial liabilty on a net basis,

g}  Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of cash in banks.

For the purpose af tha cash low statement, aciustments for net profit from financing acthviies are non-GCash
items which include the effects of foreign exchange results, amorisation of debd issued and other bomowing
using the effective inMerest rate method and FVYO valuation.

The movament in the Deferred tax assels and Kabiilies B included in the line itefn Others while the
meviernent in the income tax receivabla’payable) is included in the line items Decreasefincrease) in other
operating assels and Increase in operaling habifbes. Both thess line items are presented undar Nel cash
fiows fromyused in operaling achivties,

k) Taxation

Cument tax assels and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured as the amount expected to
ba recoverad from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Defarred tax assets and liabilties are recognised for temporary difference between the cammying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferrad tax assels and liabilities are
recognised to the extend thal it is probable that future 1axable profit will ke available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised,

Thetax rates and tax laws esed to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivaly enacted
as of the statement of financial position date,

2.4 Operating segment

The Company has crganised is business activities based on its products and services, As the Company
only engages in one operating segment of financing activity, the gross and net assets and profitioss before
taxation as presanted in the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment. The majority
of ihe debl is issued to Japanesa investors. All loan payables, loan receivables and dedvatives, except for
dervatives embedded in some of the medium term notes, are transacted with Nomura Group,

25 Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estimates are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the fallowing amendments 1o standards that have become effective and are relevant to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 21 March 2021:

Amendments to Relerences to the Concaplual Framework in IFAS Standards

The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting describes the objective of, and the concepts for,
general purpose financial reporting. The International Accounting Standards Board ("IASE") has
published its revised "Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting”. The amendments are endorsed
by EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or ater 1 January 2020 with early adoption
possible. The Ceonceptual Framework provides guidance fo preparers on delermining accounting
palicies where no specific IFRS or IAS Standard applies to a particular transaction or where a Standard
allows for an accounting policy choice. It includes limited revisions of definitions of an asset and a
liability, as well as new guidance on measuremeant and recognition, presentation and disclosure, The
concept of prudence has been reintroduced with the stalement that prudence supperts neutrality. The
Conceplual Framework is nol an IFRS Standard and does nof replace any specific Standards. The
changes in the Conceptual Framewark do not have a materal impact on the Company's financial
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position and parlormance of the Company, since all of the Company's significant accounting palicies
are derived from specific IFRS or |AS standards.

Amendments to IFAS 9. IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate Banchmark Reform

The Board has amended its new and old financial instruments Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and |AS 33 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement, as well as the related Standard on
disclosures, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosuras. The amendments are andorsed by EU and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adoption possible.
Amendments to IFAS 9 and IAS 39 Financial Instruments’ isswed in September 2019 modify spacific
hedge accounting requirements so that entities apply those hedge accounting requiraments assuming
that the imMerest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows of the hedging
instrument are based is not altered as a resull of interest rate bemchmark reform, Based on assessment
made, these amendmenis do not have a material impact on the Company's financial positien and
parfarmanca,

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

IASE issued 'Definition of Material {(Amendments to 1AS 1 and |AS 8)' to clarify the definition of ‘material’
and to align the defintion used in the Conceptual Framewaork and the standards themsalies., The
amendments are elfective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with early adeption
possible. The amendments are not endorsed by EU yet,

Based on assessment made, these amendments do not have a malerial impact on the Company's
financial posiion and parformanca.

26  Standards issued but not yet effective

Al the date of authorization of thase financial statements, the following new standards and amendmeants
to the existing standards and interprefations which are likely to be applicable to the Company have
bean issued by the 1ASE but not yet effective lor the year ended 31 March 2021:

IASE has published ‘Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 38, IFRS
7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 18)" with amendmants which relate to the modification of financial assets. financial
liabilties and lease liabilties, speciic hedge accounting requirements, and disclosure requirements
applying IFE3 7 to accompany the amendments regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

Modification of financial assets, financial Kabilties and lease Kabiliies: Tha |1ASE intreduced a practical
expedient for modifications required by the reform (modifications required as a direct consequence of
the IBOR reform and made on an economically equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updaling the effective interest rate. All other modifications are accounted for using the current
IFRS requirements. A similar practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting applying IFRS 16.

Hedge accounting requirements; Under the amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued solely
because of the IBOR reform. Hedging relationships must be amended to reflect modifications to the
hedged Rem, hedging instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging relationships shoukd meet all
qualitying criteria to apply hedge accounting, including effectivenass requiremeants,

Diselosures: The amendmants require that an enfily discloses information about:

how the transition from interest rate benchmarks to alternative benchmark rates is managed., the
progress made at the reporting date, and the risks arising fram the transition;

quantitative infermation about non-derivative financial assets, non-derivative financial Babiliies and
derivatives thal continue to reference interes! rate banchmarks subject to the reform, disaggregated
by significant interest rate benchmark;
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= tothe extent that the IBOR reform has resulted in changes to an entity’s risk managemant strategy.
a description of these changes and how is the entity managing those risks.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier
application parmitted.

Momura Group is actively working on transition away from LIBOR to risk free rates and planning has
already bagun to migrate to one or more allemative rates. We are assessing impacts, managing LIBOR
transition and seeking to mitigate risks. An analysis has been conducted to identify what processes and
systems needs fo be changed and user acceplance tests should be performed on those changes with
the involvement of mulliple departments acrass Nomura Group. The transilion period is expected to
commence during the first hall of the new reporling pericd. Additionally, the impact of the transition on
valuation mathodolegy of the financial instruments is baing evaluated by the Compary. Based on the
initial assessments made, these amendmenis are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

Armendmants to
MNan-current

On 23 January 2020, IASB isswed amendments o IAS 1 Presantation of Financial Statements {o clarify
the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-cument. More specifically, the amendments
spacity that a) the conditions which exist at the end of the reporting period are those which will ba used
to determine if a right 1o defer settlement of a liability exists b) management expectations about events
after the balance sheet date, for example on whether a covenant will be breached, or whether early
settlement will take place, are not relevant c} the amendments clarify the situations that are considered
seftlement of a liabilty. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
Januwary 2022 with early adeption possible, The amendments ara not endorsed by EL yal,

Based on agsessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact an the
Company's linancial position and perormance.

Amendments to IFAS 3 Business Combinations: 1AS 16 Propery, Plant and Equipment; [AS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, Annual Improvements 2018-2020

The package of amendments includes narrow-scope amendments to three Standards as well as the
Board's Annual Improvements, which are changes that clanfy the wording or correct minor
consequences, oversights or conflicts between requiremenis in the Standards. All amendments are
effective 1 Januwary 2022 with early adoption possinle, The amendments are not endorsed by EL yel.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

[k

The amendments change the requirements in 1AS 1 with regard 1o disclosure of accounting policies.
Applying these amendments, an enlity discloses it material accounting policies, instead of its
significant accounting policies. Further amendments to 1AS 1 are made to explain how an entfity can
idantify a material accounting pelicy. The amendments are effective lor annual pericds beginning on ar
after 1 January 2023 with early adoption possible. The amendments are not endorsed by EU yet.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are not expected to have a materal impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.

Amandmants 10 1As B S
Accounting Estimates

0On 12 February 2021, I1ASE issued amendments to [AS 8 Accounling Policies, Changes to Accounting
Estimates and Errors, in which it introduces a new definttion of “accounting estimates”. The
amendments are designed to clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and
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changes in accounting policies and comection of amors. The amendmemts are effective for annual
perods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with early adoplion possible, The amendments are not
endorsed by EU yat.

Basad on assessment macde, these amendments are not expected to have a matenal impact on the
Company’s financial position and performance.

arising from 3

Tha amendmenis require companies 1o recognise deferred tax on transactions that. on inifial
recognilion, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with early adogption
possible. The amendments are not endorsed by EU yat.

Based on assessment made, these amendments are nol axpected to have a matenal impact on the
Company's financial position and performance.
3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended

March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar Income
Leans and advances to affiliales (Mote 27) 18,382 28,334
Cash collateral (Note 16) 10 -
18,402 28,334
For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Milliong of JPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar expense
Dett issued and other borrawing (143} (208)
Cash collateral received (Note 21) (43} (77}
Borrowing from affiiates (Note 27) {18,205} (28,142)
Others (3} [
{18,354} [26.429)

Main reasons of the increase in Mel inferes! income are the changes in market condilions of infesest, such
as inferest rate gap between borrowing rate and lending rate where currencias are differant,

4. Fee and commission expense

Faor the year endad

March 2021 March 2020
Milliong af JPY Milliors of JPY
Guarantes foe paid (Note 27) (BES) {953)
(BE6) {953}
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5. Expected Credit Loss

Thea lable below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to credil risk and loss allowances of financial

instrumeants subject to impairment as of the reporting date. Certain ofl-balance shes! instrumants which
expose the Company to a risk of loss due to default by the parties underlying these confracts are also

disclosed.
As of March 2021
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Milligns of JPY Millions of JPY
Cash and cash equivalents 557 .
Other debtors 2458808 111
Cash collateral placed (Note 16) 115,240 -
Tatal 2,574 605 111
As of March 2020
Maximum exposure Loss allowance or
to credit risk provision
Milliens of JBY Milions of JPY
Cash and cash equivalents 600 .
Other daebtors 2,444 515 189
Cash collateral placed {Nole 16) 254,400 .
Tatal 2699515 189

The following table contains an analysis of the maximum credit risk exposure from financial assets not
subject to the impairment requirements in IFRS 9

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Carrying value Carrying value
Millicns of JPY Millicns of JPY
Darivative financial assels (Note 14) 183,149 128,376
Cash collateral received (Note 21) (38,840) {39600
Tedal 144,300 134.416

Balow table represems the credil sk exposure of loans by internal credit ratings and penod end stage
classification. Internal rating calegories are spiit as follows:

1} 7 grades in high cradit quality category; from AAA to A-

2) 3 grades in good credit quality category; from: BEB+ to BBB-

3} 3 grades in speculative credit qualily category; from BE+ to BE-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credit quality calegory; from B+ to B-
&) 1 grade in substantial credit risk quality category: CCC

&) 3 grades in default grade categorny; rom CC 1o D

Internal credit ratings are assigned taking into consideration the effects of economic lluctuations, o

assass creditworthiness of an obligor in one year or longer from the mid to long-term parspective. In
paricular, internal credit ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term
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capability and cerainty of debt repaymaent in addition 1o the fundamemal conditicns of a given obligor

or facilily.
As of March 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Millions of Millions Millkons Millions of
JPY of JPY of JPY JPY
Internal Credit Rating
ABA T A- 276,385 - . 276,385
EBEs / BBB- 2182423 . . 2,182,423
EB+ /BB - - . . .
B+/B- - . . -
oo - -
CC/D - s s
Gross carrying amount 2,458,808 . . 2,458,808
Loss allowance {111} - - {111}
Carrying amount 2,458,697 . . 2,458,697
As of March 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Taotal
Millions of Millions Millions Millions of
JPY of JBY of JPY JPY

Internal Credit Rating
ABA A 263,552 - . 263,552
EBEs / BBB- 2180963 . . 2,180,963
EB+/BE - - . -
B+/B- . .
CCC - .
CC/D - - .
Gross carrying amount 2,444,515 . . 2,444,515
Loss allowance {188} = - {189}
Carrying amount 2,444,326 . . 2,444,326
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The following table explains the changes in loss allowance lor the Company's financial instruments
between the beginning and the end of the pericd:

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2020

Transfers to stage 1

Transfers to stage 2

Transfers to slage 3

Financial assets derecognised
during pericd

Mew financial assets onginated
or purchagad

Write offs

Changes in modetrisk
paramedens

Faoreign exchange adjusiments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2021

Loans and
advanced to Lean
affiliates commitments
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Millicns of
Milkons of JPY Millicns of JPY JPY
188 1 189
{188) {1} [189)
110 1 111
110 1 111

The Company did not hawve any financial assels or off-balance sheet financial instrumenis classified as
Stage 2 or Stage 3 during the repoarting pefiod,

Loss allowance as at 1 April
2019

Transfers to stage 1

Transfors to slage 2

Transfers to slage 3

Financial assets derecognised
during period

New financial assets onginated
or purchased

Write offs

Changes in modelisk
parametans

Foreign exchange adjusiments
Loss allowance as at 31
March 2020

Loans and
advanced to Loan
affiliates commitments
Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Millipns of
Milkons of JPY Millions of JPY JPY
252 30 282
{252) {30} (282}
188 1 188
188 1 188

The Company did not have any financial assats or off-balance sheet financial instruments classified as
Stage 2 or Slage 3 during ithe repariing period.

111/207



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The COVID-19 pandemic ked to elevated credit spraads in the markeds. Impact was most prominently seen

as of 31 March 2020 when COVID- 15 pandemic resulfed in a substantial increase in PO rates used in the
axpacied crodil loss.

6. Net trading incomei(loss)

Far the year ended

March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Net irading income/(loss) on derivative financial
instrurments 168,031 (26,282)
Mt fareign exchange gains 3,938 12,643
171.967 (13.639)

Tha Company manages the nsks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchanges and interest rates
with the vse of derivative instruments. The gains and losses on dervatives, which are held for rigk
management purposes to offset these flucluations are included in Med trading income{loss).

For hybrid instrumants whare the embeddad derivatives are separated and measurad at fair valua, the
gains and losses on hedging derivatives are offset by the gains and losses on embedded derivatives. For
theinstruments which are not bifurcatad, the gains and losses on hedging derivatives may cause fluctuation
in the recognition of gains and lesses in Net trading income{loss).

The vast majonty of the increase in MNet frading incomefloss) for the year ended 31 March 2021
compared to the year ended 31 March 2020 is resulting from the hedging dernvatives associated to the
financial liabilties designated at fair walue through profit or loss, This increasa is largely ofiset by a
cormesponding decrease In the Net gaintfioss) on financial Kabdities desigrated at falr value through
profit or loss (Mate 7).

Risk management, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with financial

Instruments, is disclosed in Mate 23,

7. HNet gainfloss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
For the year ended

March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Net gain/{loss) on fimancial liabilities
designated at fair value threugh profit or
loss [171,225) 27,707
(171,229} 27.707

Interast expenses, gaing and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction cosls associated
with the financial liabilifies designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under Net
gairv{loss) on financial Kabilities designated at fair valuwe through profit or loss, except fer the cumency
translation effact which is included in Net frading income:{ioss) (Mote B).

This decrease in Net gainfiloss) on financial liabiifies designated at fair value through profit or loss is

largely offzet by an increase in Nef trading incomedloss) (Note &) resulting from the hedging derivatives
associated to the financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss,
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8. Other operating gains

For the year ended

Millions of JEY

Advance pricing agresment adjusimeant
{Nota27)
Miscellaneous gains

March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY

9. Salaries and social charges

Millions of JFY

Salaries
Pension premium
Secial chargas and wallare

1,063 -
142 24
1,195 24
For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020

Milligns of JPY

{143) {131)
127} {18}
(18} {19}

(188} {169}

10. Number of employeas

Tha Company had 14 employess working in the Netherands as of 31 March 2021 (2020: 14). 8 of the 14
employees were working part time as of 31 March 2021 (2020 7).

11. General and administrative expenses

For the year ended

Millions of JPY

March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY

Advance pricing arrangament
adjustment (MNote 27)
Sub-contractor lees (Notas 27)
Taxes other than income tax
Audit feas

QOther professional fees
Administrative (Note 27)
Others

- {3,745)
{486} (482}
{1.202) (832}
(55} {48}
(35} (20}
(112} (77}
1:]] {5)
{1.698) {5.209)

Advance pricing arrangement

The Company has a unilateral advance pricing agresmant (the “Unilateral APA") for the avoidance of
double taxation in the Netherlands and in Japan, for which Duteh tax authorities approved the renawal
requast on 5 June 2019 with the affective pariod starting from 1 April 2012 and ending 31 March 2022,
For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021, NHI and the Company agreed o seftle the
adjustment in line with the terms of the Unilateral APA, The advance pricing agreement adjustment was
recaivable from NHI for the year ended 31 March 2021, The gain of JPY 1,053 milion was reported
under Other operating gains . The movement in the direction of advanced pricing agreement adjustrment
i& due te the decrease in taxable income base. For the year ended 31 March 2020 JPY 3,745 million

113/207

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

adjustiment amount payabla to NHI was included in the above expense account line item ‘advance
pricing arrangement adjustment,

12. Taxation
The components of the taxation expense for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as
follows:
For the year ended
March 2021 March 20230
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
Current tax:
Currant income fax (267) (795}
Adjustment in respect of curment income tax
of prior years 1 &7
Defered tax:
Effect of change in income tax rate a5 (10}
Adjusiment in respect of defermed tax
of prior years 130 -
Relating to temporary differences {11} {1,610
Taxation expanse {61) (2.348)
Far the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Milliens of JEY Milliens of JPY
Profit betore tax 1.067 8,759
At Dutch statutory income tax rate of 25% (267} (2,440}
Adjustmant in respect of current income tax of
prior years i BT
Efiect of tax adjustment for realised OCA - 41
Efiect of change in income tax rate 88 (20}
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of prior years 130 -
Eflect of parmanent difference balween taxable
income and accounting profl {11} 4
Taxation expense {61} (2,248}

Tha nominal tax rate for the fiscal voar ended 31 March 2021 i 25% (2020: 25%) whila the affective 1ax
rate i 25.96% (2020. 22.96%). The previcusly announced reduction (21.7%) of the Dutch corporate
income tax rate is net implemented and income tax rate remained at 25% in 2021, The impact af this
change is included abave in Effect of change in income tax rate.
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Tha movemams in the income tax receivable and defered tax assets and labilties are as follows:

For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Income tax (payable)recelvable
Beginning balance (81} [{=5]
Paymant 516 424
Charged to incomea (266) (¥2a)
Ot moverments (77} 3G9
Ending balance 122 151}
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Beginning balance {3,082) {172}
Deferred tax attributable o changa in own credit
risk 809 (10}
Effect of change in income tax rate [445) {1,610}
Adjusiment in respect of dederred tax of prior
years 130 -
Decrease related 1o temporary diferences (11) (1,270)
Ending balance (2.673) (3.062)

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferred taxes oocur due to the
differences in tax base measurement and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the
delerred tax assets and liabilities of the Company pertain o the valuation of the dervative financial
instrumants and financial labilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

The components of the deferred tax recognized in the statement of financial position for the years ended
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Faor the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Delerred tax attributable to own credit risk 13.215) [3,494)
Valuation of financial instruments 610 3asF
Loss allowances for financial instruments 26 45
(2979 (3,062)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Derivative financial instruments

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Milligns of JFY Millions of JFY
Positive fair values
Furaign axchange ralated derivatives 27.068 27,214
Interast rate derivatives 34,883 s2022
Equity derivatives 38,223 42,351
Commoedity derivatives 74248 5517
Credit derivatives 2727 1.172
183,145 128,376
Megative fair values
Fumign exchange ralated derivatives 111,642 103,757
Interest rate derivalives 28,107 42173
Equity derivatives 48,912 95,284
Commedity derivatives 2,383 25,773
GCredit derivatives 1,682 13,588
192,736 280,585

Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current derivative financial assets and derivative

financial liabilities.

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Milliens of JBY Millions of JPY
Maotional amounts
Foraign exchange related derivatives 1,144,041 1,208,039
Interest rate derivatives 801,529 1,132,843
Equity derivatives 505,968 445 554
Commodity derivatives 37,000 255,100
Credit derivatives 223162 257,328
2,712,700 3,250,865

oOoOooodn

Al the above figures in tables include bilurcated embedded derivatives. Each derivative classification
includes derivatives referencing multiple risk components. For example, interesi rate contracts include
complex derivatives referencing imerest rate risk as well as foreign exchange risk.

All foreign exchange related derivatives and other dervatives mentioned above, excep! for bifurcated
embedded derivatives, are transacted with Nomura Groug,

Tha Company uses derivatives for hedging purposas in the management of its medium term notes
portiolio. This enables the Company fo mitigate the market risk and interest rate risk arising from its
assets and liabilities.

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuation adjustments are taken into

account. The credit and debit valuaticn adjustments are minimal as the Company exchanges cash
collateral (Notes 16 and 21).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Cash and cash equivalents
The balance only comprises of cash in banks wiich is unrestrictad for disposal.

16. Other assats
As of
March 2021 March 2020
Millicnis of JPY Millians af JPY
Other non-current assets:
Facilities and Equipments 3 4
3 E
Az of
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Othar currant assets:
Cash collateral (Notes 5 and 27) 115,240 254,400
Others 2648 1,711
117 BER 256,111

Under International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA") Credit Support Annex signed with related
parties, the Company posts Cash collaterallo dervative countarparties related to dervative transactions.
Cithers mainly include accrued interest incoma,

17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorised share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Eure ("EUR") 454 par value per share.
Tha issued and paid-up share capital comprises of 113,000 shares with ELIR 454 par value per share.

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of
March 2021 March 2020

Issued and paid-up capital at historical cost

{JPY Millians) 8,402 8,402
Issued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par value per share (EUR) 454 454
Isswed shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY} 129.775 119.235
Issued and paid-up capital (JPY Millions) 5,658 5,117

Difference batween issusd and paid-up capital and issued and paid-up capital at historical cost is presented
under reserves as follows:

119/207



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Issued and paid-up capilal at historical cost 8,402 8,402
Issued and paid-up capital 6,658 8,117
Translation difference 1,744 2,285

As required by Article 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dulch Civil Code the lssued and paid-up capital account
is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate from EUR
to JPY as of the statement of financial position date. The diferance betwean the historical cost and the
carrying amount of the issued and paid-up capital as of the statement financial pesition date is recorded
under Currency transiation reserve account.

18. Dividends paid

During the year ended 31 March 2021 cash dividend of JPY 5,300 million was paid to the sharsholder
of tha Company. (Mo dividend was paid for the year ended 31 March 2020).

19. Debt issued and other borrowing

a. Meon-current debl issued and other barmowing

For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Millicns of JPY Milkions of JPY
Baginning balance 315818 439,064
Issuas - -
Redemptions. {48,207) {49,408)
Reclassifications lo current liabilities (25,558) {73,961)
Other mavements (1,810 (477
Ending balance 242,203 315,818
b.  Gurrent debt issued and ofher borrowing
For the year ended
Mareh 2021 Mareh 2020
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Baginning balance 54,332 63,756
Issues - -
Redomptions {75,436) {72,149)
Reclassifications from non-currant liabilities 25,588 73,361
Other mavemeants {1,960} {E36)
Ending balance 12.534 54,332

In the above tables, Other movements are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange resulis.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINAMCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

a, Mon-cument financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Millicns of JPY

Beginning balance 917855 1,057,153
Issues 243,222 313,675
Redemptions {176,719) (161,508)
Reclassilications 1o

current liabilities {206, 248) (&30,489)
Fm'eign exchange resulls 1,162 {36,337)
Unrealised revaluations 18,110 (10,591)
Changes in own credit 3,375 (5,068)
Cthar movements (B4} 1
Ending balance 797,915 217,855

k. Current financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY

Beginning balance 413,668 218,037
Issuas 545,204 201 481
Redemptions (787,738) [193,739)
Reclassifications from

nan-current liabilities 206,245 239,469
Foraign exchange result 12,378 (B,681)
Unrealised revaluations 124,004 (46,084
Changes in own credit (164} (155}
Cther movements (S04) 1,340
Ending balance 536,654 413,668

The impact of fair value changes atiributable 1o the Company’s own credit risk included in other
comprehensive income on financial labilties designated at far value through profit or loss is an
unrealised loss of JPY 3,239 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (JPY 5.254 million gain for the
financial year ending 31 March 2020). The cumulative valuation adjustments resuling from own credit
is an unrealised gain of JPY 12,882 millien as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: JPY 16,101 millien
gain). The Company cakulates the own credit spreads refermng to secondary market prices,

The carrying amount is lower than the contractually due amount for the financial fabilities designated

at fair vaiue through profit or loss by JPY 143,674 million as of 31 March 2021 (2020: the carmrying
amount is lower than the coniractually due amount by JPY 97,359 millien).
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
21. Other liabilities

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Milligns of JEY Millions of JPY
Cash collateral received (Motes 5 and 27) 38 840 3,960
Others 3,382 4,250
42222 8,250

Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collateral from
darivative counternparies related 1o dervative transactions. Others mainly include accrued infares! axpanse
and other accrued expenses.

22. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Tha Company has JEY 241,613 millien unsettied lean commitmeants 1o Nomura Group companias ag of 31
March 2021 (2020: JPY 235,000 million). Unsettied loan commitments are hedd off balance sheat, uniil the
point at which thay becoma drawn.

23. Risk management

The Company's risk managemant activities involve both the assessment and transter of cerain risks which
the Company must manage. The most imporant types of sk are market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
operational risk. Market risk mcudes cumancy risk, price risk, and interest rate risk.

Tha Company's primary objactive is o act as a financing vehicle for Momura Group. To this end, the
Company issuas debt with relums linked 1o a variety of different indices including but not limited to
squilies, interast rate, foreign exchange, cradil and commodities. The Company aciivaly manages the
resultant risk using derivative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments. The Company transacts these derivative instruments solely with
cther enlities within Nomura Group.

The Company's financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited to or received
from cther entities within Nomura Group, del issued and other borrowing, financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and derivatives and borrowing from affiliates,

Group Risk Appetite

Momura Group has determined the types and levels of risk that it is willing to assume in pursuit of its
strategic objectives and business plan and hag ariculated this in its RBisk Appetite Statement. This
document is jointly submitted by the Ghiel Risk Officer ("GRO™) and the Chief Financial Officer ("GFO")
to the Executive Management Board ("EMB") far approval.

The Risk Appatite Statement provides an aggregated view of risk and includes capital adequacy,
liguidity, financial risk and non-financial risk. 11 s subject 1o regular manilaring and breach escalation as
appropriate by the owner of the relevant risk appelite statement.

Momura Group’s Risk Appetite Statement is required to be reviewed at least annually by the EMB but
it is reviewad on an ad-hoc basis if necessary, and must specifically be reviewed following any
significant changes in Nomura Group’s sirategy. Risk appefite underpins all additional aspects of
Momura Group's risk management framework.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Global Risk Management Struclure

Upon delegation fram the EMB, the Group Imtegrated Risk Management Committes ("GIEMC")
deliberates on or delermines important matters concarning integrated risk management of Nomura
Group to assure the sound and effective management of its businesses. The GIRMC establishes
Momura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated risk management consistent with Nomura
Group's risk appetite. The GIRMC supervises Nomura Group's risk management by establishing and
cperafing its risk management framework. The GIAMC reports the status of key risk management

issues and any other matters deemed necessary by the committee chairman to the Board of Director
and the EMB.

in addition, the GIRMC, upon delegation fram the EMB, has established the Risk Management Palicy,
describing Momura Group's overall risk management framework including the fundamental risk
managemeni principles followed by Nomura Group.

Upan delagation from the GIRMC, the Global Portfalio Commitles ("GPC") delibarates an o datermines
all matters in relation to the managemeant of a specilic portialio, for the purpose of achiaving a risk profile
consistent with the risk allecation and sk appatite of Noemura Group. The portfalio consists of
businesses and products that fall within at least cne of the three following categories: event financing,
term financing and asset-based financing.

The CRO is responsible for setting the averall strategy and directicn of the Risk Management Division.
Tha Risk Managemeant Division, the Finance Division and the Legal, Complianca and Contrals ("LEC™)
Diwvigion comprise various deparmenis or units established independently from Nomura Group's
business units. These three divisions are responsible for establishing and operating risk management
processes, establishing and enlorcing risk management pelicies and regulations, wverifying the
effectiiveness of risk management methods, gathering reports from Nomura Group entities, reporting to
Executive Cfficers/Senior Managing Directors and the GIRMC and others, as well as reporting to
regulatory bodies and handling regulatory applications concerning risk management mathods and ather
itams as necessary.

Paolicies and procedures are essential tools of governance and define principles, rules and standards,
and the specific processes that must be adhered to in order to ellectively manage risk at Momura Group.
Risk management cperations are run in accordance with these policies and procedures.,

Development, consolidation, monitoring and reporting of risk management information ( “risk MI™ ) are
fundamental to the appropriate management of risk. The aim of all risk Ml is to provide a basis for sound
decision making, action and escalation as required. The Risk Management Division, the Finance
Division and the LCC Division are responsible for producing regular risk M1, which reflacts the position
of Momura Group relalive to stated risk appetite. Risk Ml includes information from across the risk
classas defined in the risk managament framework and reflect the use of the various risk tools used 1o
identify and assess those risks, These three divisions are responsible for implementing appropriate
controls over data integrity for risk M.

The Company's qualitative and quantitative risk management

Markel Bisk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from fluctuations in values of financial assels and liabilities
{including off balance sheet items) due to fluctuations in market risk faciors (interes! rates, foreign
exchange rates, prices of sacurities and others). Effective management of this risk requires the ability
to analyse a complex and evalving portinlio in a constanily changing global market environment, identify
problematic trends and ensure that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner, The Company seeks
te minimise the markel risks by enlering into derivative agreements to economically hedge the

exposuras in its loans and medium term notes. The matwity structure of the derivatives comesponds
with the maturity of the medium term notas being hedged.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest Rate and Equity Price Risk
It is the palicy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures via the use of interest
rate derivatives, cross currency denvalives of equily Swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or long-term bormowings throwgh the issuance of medium
term notes. The Company funds the desired currencias at both fixed and floating rates of inferest and
then uses both interest rate and currency derivalives to generate the desired interest rate hedge profile.
This will invohve matching the coupon dates on both the assets and liabilities where relevant.

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Gompany does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

Currancy Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assets and monetary liabiliies of the Company that
are not denominated in the functional currency of the Company. All material net currency exposure
arising from activities of the Company is actively hedged using foraign exchange related derivatives
andlor currancy dervatives,

It is the policy of the Company not to frade currency exposure; therefore, all currency derivative
transactions are anterad into with the intention of hedging only.

Applying the above hedging policy on cumency exposura, the Company does nol have a significant
currency axposura as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

Credit A

Credit risk management

Credil risk is therisk of loss arising from an obligor’s default. insolvency or administrative proceeding
which results in the ocbligor's failure 1o meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms.
This includes both on and off-balance shes exposures, It is also the risk of loss anising through a credit
valuation adjusiment associated with deterioration in the creditworthiness of a counterparty.

The measurement. monitoring and management of credit risk at Nomura Group are governed by a set
of global policies and procedures. Credit Risk Manageament ("GRM), a global functicn within the Risk
Managemen! Division, is responsible for the implementation and mainenance of these policles and
procedures, Credit risk is managed by CRM together with various global and regional risk commitiees.
Thiz enzures transparency of material credit risks and compliance with establishad credit limitz, the
approval of matenal extensions of credit and the escalation of nsk concentrations to appropriate sanior
management.

Credit quality of financial assets

Thia Company is a lully awned subsidiary of NHI, wha is the guarantor of the notes issued by the
Company, together with another related party, Therefore the Company considered the credit rating of
Momura Group as the same credit rafing received by NHI from S&P Global Ratings which is BBB+ as
of 31 March 2021,

The Company's loans and dervative financial instruments are traded exclusively with Nomura Group.,
The external credit rating of NHI is considerad (o exhibit adequate pratection paramalers, as defined by
SE&P Global Ratings. Consequently, the Company daems that credit risk is minimised.

Credit Risk Mifigation Techniques

As meniioned previcusly, the Company enters into ISDA master agreements or equivalent agreements
(called “Master Netting Agreements”) to mitigate its exposure fo credit koss. The impact of offsetting
financial aszets and financial liabilities which are subject to these agreaments is not reflacted in the
statement of financial position.

Impaired inancial assels
Thea Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils
financial assets. The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date as
described in Note 2.3 e,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All loans are transacted with Momura Group. Please see Note 27 for the amount of impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2021 or prior period.,

Liquidity Hisk

Liguidity Aisk Management

MNomura Group defines liquidity risk as the risk of loss arising from difficulty in securing the necessary
funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deterioration of Nomura
Group's creditworthiness or deferioration in market condilions. This risk could arise from MNomura-
specific or market-wide evenis such as inability to access the secured or unsacured debt markets, a
deterioration in Nomura Group credit ratings, a failure to manage unplanned changes in funding
requiremants, a failure to lquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value, or changes in
regulatary capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different Nomura group
entities. Liquidity risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite formulated by the EMB.
Momura Group's liquidity risk management, under market-wide siress and in addifion, under Nomura
Group spacilic slress, seaks 10 ensure anough continuous liguidily ta meel all funding requirerments and
unsecured debt cbligations across one year and 30-day periods respectively without raising funds
through unsecured funding or through the liquidation of ascets.

Tha Nomura Group has in place a numbar of Liquidity Risk Management frameworks that anable
MNamura Group to achieve its primary bquidity objective. These frameworks include (1) Centralized
Control of Residual Gash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Ltilization of Unencumbered Assals
as Part of Liquidity Portfalio; (3} Appropriate Funding and Diversification of Funding Sources and
Maturities Commensurate with the Composition of Assets; (4) Management of Credit Lines (o Nomura
Group Entifies; (5) Implemeniation of Liquidity Stress Tests; and (6) Confingency Funding Plan.

Tha EMB has the authority to make decisions concerning Momura Group liguidity management. The
CFO of NHI has the operational authority and responsibility over Nomura Group's liquidity management
based on decisions made by the EMB.

The Company is fully integrated inte Nomura Group's Liquidity Risk Management frameworks given its
primary role as the funding vehicle of Nomura Group,

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by
Glebal Treagsury of Momura Group to aveld any concentration of funding by matunty and scurce. The
distribution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order fo ensure
aceass to funds and to aveid a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one Source,

125/207



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

I8 St L - - BLO'LOZ Yezear'l BLESL - yey Aupinbi o sunsodxe ol
IBI ST T - - 6L0°L0Z FBC GOT | BLE'SLL - SI0SEE |2|IUBUY PAOIUNOIE|PUN [Hi9]
IBTSkr 2 - - B0 102 vBE BaF | BIEGLE - S| &) SEHRAPE pUE SURGT
1 Ad 11 Adi 11 Adr (18 AP [ Adr 1 AP [ Adr
|EeL SIr0k 5 sIeok w0k | - SAEP 06 shep PURLLSP LD

uBy) HalEq g=1 shep L6 =1£ 0E Wey) 559 0202 Y2uegy LE o sy
LZL0SPE - - FEE'S5L 589795 85k 0bs . Hsu Aupnby| o) eansode (o)
JZL05 T - - FEEa5 | SRS TOE BSE b - SEOSEE [LISUCUY PAILUNSITIBUR (B8]
LEh ORF & - - T GET B BGk b - SEE||LE O} SEIUBARE PUE SUE0T
I Adr 1 Adi I Adr 1 Al I Adr I Adr I Adr
G sk § sIEah ek | — =Aep 06 shep PUBLLEP UG

uEyp JEE §-1 shep 1§ -1E OF WEY) 5587 1202 YoIe LE JO 5Y

519558 [B|oue|4
‘uondwepal 10 uoIeUILLS) ALES JBLN8 O BINJES) 8L} BABY SBI|IGE!| [EIOUELY PBUCILBLU MO|8q 8U} JO (%2885 (0202) %90 #9 Alerewixoiddy

‘SUSWAISUL |BISUBLY BUY) Jo Aunjew [Bnjaeiuoed &y Bujuesaid jo esodind ey
10 JuslunisUl [Boueuly pUgAY eyl wol pajesedas 10U ale seilgey [RIOUEU SABALST MUE SI8SSE [BIDUBUY SATBAUSET J8PUN Papooal 818 UIIUM SEABALSD peppaquie aly|

‘pouad Bupodal ey jo pue ey je Bunsne sUoIPpUOD ay) 0] Souala)al

AQ peuLLBep SI PESD|ISID JUNDLWE SU) “paX)) JoU S| pEAIBDe) 89 ¢} Wnowe ay) Jo pied eq o) Junowe ey eseypy, obejes puswep uo Jepun pepodes ssop so ppoud yhnowg
anEA 8] B pejeubisap ssnngeEl Eoveuy eyl 1o deaxa uoisod |RISUEUY JO JUSLUSIEIS SU| O] S{I0UDSal JoU Op ABL] SNUY) SMO|) YSED paIUNoISIpun UD PRSE] BJE MO|aq Sajqe] aul
sajqe] funjep prisegues

SINIWILVYLS TVIONYNI4 3HL OL S3L0ON

AN IONYNI4 3dOHN3 YHNWON

126/207



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

SETTE

TBEzzEoE 1ZE 068 101 V% Z2s a6t DSz ars ZSF 22F BOG L
Toczze0t 126068 L1585 z25 968 DSz 9bs 2522y 806831
000 582 : : : 000552 :
G99 GHL - - cE6'1IE LOR'G0E OSR'ESL -
CEZHES | BLO'929 E20'305 ZLLErE FAtag 1Y% opa'sl BOE'3FL
2BEGIY B9 992 V618 BEEEY 8981 a6
i1 Ad i Ad i AP i Adr i1 Ad i1 Adr i AdF
(TR i%ﬂm Er h;Wﬂl LT sARp pURLLBD UG
uey) seie 51 shep 16 -1t OE Uey) 5887
L i 1 _I I ] 1, Ll v
96LEPE 989 1r0t2s 20 DOT BIPGLL 715815 LIENEE
9BLEEOC 16989 1F0E2s Z0H02 BIFBLL zi58iS LIEee
T . . . VEVE 0B} 252 -
92L'L6% - . . 699'ES LS0'PIE .
ESP'SE5" | A ey LEC 5 09k vl EF2'0EL FEO'ES LIE'VES
EEV'LLZ L1956} 028'99 £og's ao't VOB
I Adr I Adr I Adr I Adr 1w Adr I Adr 1w Adr
G sieak g IS 1eal | - elep 06 elep PUBLLBP LD
uey) Jeje) s-1 shep 16 -1g 0 Uey) s507

SIN3IWILVYLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S3LON
"A’'N 3ONVNI4 3d0HN3 YHNIWON

H51 Anpinby) of ansodxe eie)

SO0H119=]) j2URU]} PAUNOIS|PUN [BIOL

SIS UPILILIGD B

sopEE woy Bumouog

S50 30 Woud

ybnong enpes Jje) 1e pepeuliisap senmpey ejoweuly
GO IS PUR PENSS| K8

0Z0Z Y2Jey LE Jo BY

Hey Appinby o einsodye o)

SOUIIGE] [ISUSUY PAIUNSIEIPUN (2oL

SIS LLILILES BB

sateye woy Sumoucg

SHo] s yosd

ukinan) anjes Jie) 1e peleubisap somiqen [Bweuly
Guwouing Jeql0 PUE pENEs| K0

LZOT Y2y LT o 5Y

Safqel (efauedld

127/207



EDINETOOOO

oOoOooodn

65616 Z60'LE SEL0L SSEZEL BEL'EL 12612 [591'EE) BA|IEALIBP |E|IUBUY PAIUNCIEIRUN (B0
(zas'a) BEZ'IL [Lre'sz] [z EEF'G [ . SaAIEAIED
[eaueuy paies ssoJB pajunoss|pun (ee]
TBlE L6 &) TESE OF L) L9 O TR i) TGEE T TLve ag 1 epyefed SUNowEe (engeIo g
959088 8 L8951 DE5E01 BOE'EL BLLBLE TR e BRI SIUMGLUIE [BNIEINTD
EBAJLEA|IBE [B13UEL| PaIAE-SE0UD
12586 FOE'PL LIE9E e S0LE EEG'L (581'EE) SOANBALIED
[RISURBLY PIIOS-10U PAUNCIE |PUN [RIOL
125 15 VOB FL L6 LAE L G0l E B T5al £e) Gunpied) 10 PIey SBATEALSE RS-0
SSA|JEALISP |E[OUBUY PRIES-1BN
[ A [ Adr [ Adr [ Adr W hdr [ Adr U Al

[CETR sitek 5 sieal el | - shep o6 shep PUBLLISP UG
uey) S §=1 shep L6 -1t OE UBY) 5507 0202 Yo LT o $Y
LE9°1EL orL'ay ZELB 65552 2668 ZEI'EL a10'aL BA|IEALIBP |E|IUBUY PAIUNGIE|RUN (B0
(50Zel) (BELTZ] [ETN ] [TH] TEET 0e0zZE . EBAJEALIOD |BlDUBLY
Pofikes $50U6 PHLNGIS|PUN (1L
BL0a0E 2} LESL iR [(TANFFAN| (=T N ] _"_.mdm_..w_ £l LESE SEL L) w_n-.m.__“un SIUNHLE [B7 RIS
BV GEE S L2F L GEE'Z0L LER'GL EVEFIE BISERLL R AN LN (RO
EBAJLEA|IBE [B13UEL| PaIaE-SE0UD
TEFE L FEE 05 TEHLE 8550 7K TES'L FIGEN SOANBALIED
[RISURBLY PIIOS-10U PAUNCIE |PUN [RIOL
aFE PBL ¥em 05 266 BT BIE G2 ovd o FE ACEN Gungied) 1o Pieny SBATEALSE PfIES-100
SSA|JEALISP |E[DUBUY PRIES-1BN

[ A [ A [ A dr [ her [ dr [ er [ dr

G sitel 5 sieal ek | - shep o6 shep PUBLLISP UG

uey) o] §=1 shep |6 -1t DE UBY) 5507 LE0T YoURK LE O 5V

sanjjEAdap |BjauEu|d

128/207

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

“ajep Aunjew
[eneuo ay) o) pousd Buuewsa ey vo peseq s sBuidnosb Aunyew o sisdjeus ey sespeausp el s Auedwo ey jo apposd fuUniEW sU) SMOYS Mmojaq age) el

SIN3IW3LVLS TVIONVYNI4 3HL OL S3LON
AN IONYNI4 3dOHN3 YHNWON



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- fonal B

Mamura Group defines oparational risk (the “Operaticnal Risk”) as the risk of loss or non-financial impact
arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from axternal evants.
Operational rigk includes in 13 dafinition compliance, legal, IT and cyber security, fraud, third party and
cther non-financial risks. Operational risk does not include strategic risk and reputational risk, however,
some operational risks can lead to reputational issues and as such cperational and reputational risks
may be closaly linkad.

The Three Lines of Defence

Mormwra Group adopts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising the following elements:

1) 1st Line of Defence: The business which owns and manages its risks

2) 2nd Line aof Defence: The Operational Risk Management ("OFM) function, which co-ordinates the
Operational Risk Management Framewaork and its implementation

3) 3rd Line of Delence: Intarmal Audit, who pravide indepandent assurance

Operational Risk Managemen! Framework

An Cperational Risk Managemen? Framework has been established in order to allow Nomura Group o
idantify, assess. manage, manitor and repert on operational risk. The GIRMC, with delegated autharity
fram the EMB has farmal oversight aver the management of operational risk.

Tha ORM framawork consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2] Products and Sarvices and 3)
Quiputs, The Company is fully integrated into Nomura Group's ORM framework,

Below are the measures taken to control the main operational risks which form Products and Services
in the ORM framework:

- Risk and Control Self-Assassmant: This process is used 1o identify the inherent risks the businass
faces, the key confrals associated with those risks and relevant actions o mitigate the residual risks.

- Scanario Analysis: This process is used to assess polentially high impact, low likelihood operational
risk events and where the process identifies the need to do so, agree aclions to improve controls.

- Event Reporting: This process is used to identify and report any event which resulted in or had the
potential to resull in a loss or gain or eiher impact associated with inadequate or failled intermal
procassas, people and systems, or from axternal events.

- Key Risk Indicators: These are the metrics used to monitor the business’ exposure fo operational risks
and frigger appropriate responses as thresholds are breached.

Applying the above measurements, the Company does not have a significant operational risk exposure
as of 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020

24. Fair Value

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparison of the carmying amourts and fair values of finandial instruments

The carrying amounts of curment financial assets and current financial liabilities measured at amortised
cesl incleding Borrowing from afifates fairly approximate their fair values, since they are shor-term in

nature. Below lables include comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of non-current koans
and advances to affiliates and non-current debt issued and othar bomrowing.
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Az of March 2021

Carrying
amaount Fair value
Lavel 2 Level 3
Miions of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Leans and advances to affiliales - -
Det issued and other borrawing 242,203 237,207

Az of Mareh 2020

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Milkons of  Millions of
Milligns of JPY JPY JPY
Leoans and advances to affiliales 1 - -
Dot issued and other borrawing 315,818 299,347 .

For financial assels carmed al amofised cost which have a matunty of more than ona year fram the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the
prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit risk and senicnty of the ralevant loans are taken into
congideration in determining the tair value of the loan,

For financial liakilities carmied al amorlised cost having a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on prica quotations at the statemeant
of financial position date. These quotations are based on techniques for which all inputs that have a
significant effect on the fair value are observable aither directly or indirectly, as well as techniques which
usa inpuis not based on observable market data.

Fair Yalue Hierarchy

All assets and liabilies for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value higrarchy, describad as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is
signilicant 1o the fair value measurement as a whale, where Level 1 is represanting the most iransparent
imputs and Level 3 represanting the least transparent inpuis:

Level 1: Observable valuation inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical financial
instrumeants traded in active markels at the measurement date.

Level 2: Valuation inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or
indiracily observable for the financial instrument.

Level 3: Unobservable valuation inputs which reflect Nomura Group's assumgtions and specific data,
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hiararchy as explained above,

For asseds and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a resurring basis, the
Company determines whether fransfers have occurred between Levels in the hisrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation at the beginning of each reporting pericd.

The availability of valuation inputs obsarvabde in the market varies by product and can be affected by a
variety of faciers, Significant factors include, but are nol resiricted to the prevalence of similar products
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in the market, especially lor customized products, how established the product is in the markat, for
example, whether it is a new product or is relatively mature, and the reliability of infeemation provided
in the marked which would depand. for example, on the frequency and volume of current data, A period
of significant changa in the market may reduce the availability of observable data. Under such
circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower level in the fair value hierarchy.

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instrumenis include the nature
of the market in which the product would be traded, the underlying risks, the type and bquidity of market
data inputs and the nature of observed transactions for similar instruments.

Where valuation modals include the use of valuation inputs which are less observable or unobservable
in the market, significant management judgment is used in establishing fair value. The valuations for
Lewvel 3 financial instruments, therefore, involve a greater degree of judgment than those valuations for
Level 1 or Level 2 financial instruments and has become more prevalent during the COWID19
pandemic.

The tollowing tables presents information about the Company's financial assets and financial liabilfies

maasured al fair valua within the fair value hierarchy on a recumng basis, based on the tranzparency of
inputs into the valuation technigues used by the Company to defermineg such fair values,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy

The tollowing tables show a reconciliation of all movements in the fair valus of financial instruments
categoriged within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

pariod.

Beginning balance

Total guins bosses) in the income
stalemant and statement of
comprehensive income *

M 55005

Sattlements

Transbers in

Transters cut

Ending balance

Tolal wnreaised gns Jos505)
tor the pariod includad in the
Incoma statament for instruments
held at the end of the reporting
period

Beginning balance

Total gains/(losses) in the income
stalemant and stalement of
comprahansive income ™

M [$sues

Sattlements

Transbers in

Transters oul

Ending balance

Total unrealised gains/(losses)
tor the peried includad in the
Incomea atatament for instrumants
held at the end of the reporting

pariod

March 2021
Financial liabilities
dasignated al fair
Derivative Dreivative value through
financial assats  Fnancial Rabilities afil of loss
Millions of JBY Millions of JPY Milioms of JPY
45,423 54355 186,485
(26,063) (17,393) 34,340
. . 433,576
16,901 (6.802) (257.733)
407 12,258 92,108
(1.547) {1.268) (B4.844)
39,121 41,051 403,732
7.609 [4,016) (9452)
March 2020
Financial liabilites
dasignated al fair
Derivative Dresivative value through
liriiicial Financial Eabillies profit or loss
Millions aof JBY Millions of JEY Milioms of JPY
58662 61,623 185,737
(1277 (403) 4873
- . 199,977
7041 (4.545) {136.432)
1,765 4,998 31,220
4,328 (7,318 (99,000
425 5 558 06,408
4,372 (7171} 3382

*For assots, positive balances reprosent gains, negative balances reprosent kasses. For liabilities, positive balances represoent

lossaes, negalive balances represent gains,

Total gains and losses an financial derivatives included in the above table are included under Net frading
incomefloss) in the incoma statement, Total gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair
value throwgh profit or loss included in the above table are included under Net gainiloss) on fnancial
habilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in the income statement,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
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During fhe years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, there were no financial assets and financial
liakilities recognised at fair value under Level 1. Thus, no transtars occurmed betwaen Lavel 1 and Laval 2.

The Company assumes thal all transfers of financial instruments from one level 1o ancther level within
the fair value hierarchy occur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period in which the
transfer takes place. Amounis reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial
instrumants at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques by major class of financlal instrument
Derivatives:

The Company has only OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, which are valued
using internal models using market transactions and cther marketl evidence whenever possible,
including markel-based inpuls to models, model calibration to market cleaning transactions, broker or
dealer guotations, or allernative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price fransparency. Valuation
techniques include simple discounted axpected cash flow techniques, Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo
simulations, OTC derivatives, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, are classified within Lewel 2
of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can be corroborated to market avidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant unobsarvable inputs swech as cormelation, long-
dated valatility, or othar unobsarvable inpuls are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
classified as Level 3 by the Company include exolic interest rate derivatives, exctic foreign exchange
derivatives, exolic equity derivatives, exatic derivatives including a combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange amd equity risks and certain cther transactions including long-dated or exclic credit
darivatives.

Valuation technigques may rely on parameters which are not chaanvable in the market due 1o an absance
of equivalent, current, market transactions or observable market data. These valuation lechnigues are
based on assumptions. As a result, the fair value caleulated using these valuation technigues will
change if the underlying assumplions changa.

For the year anded 31 March 2021, a total of JPY 407 milkon of financial assets (2020: JPY 1,765
million) and atatal of JPY 12,252 millien of financial labiities (2020: JPY 4,998 million) were transiesnad
into Lewvel 3. Cn the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarily JPY 448 million of
equity desivatives (2020 comprised primarily JPY 1,630 million of eguity derivalives) which wera
transferred into Lewel 3 becauvse ceartain volatillies and correlations became unobservable or the
significance of unobservable parameters increased. On the financial liabilties side the transiemed
amounis comprised primarily JPY 11,883 million of equily desivatives {2020: comprised primarily JPY
4,561 million of equily derivatives) which weare fransferred inlo Level 3 because certain volatilities and
corralations bacamea unobservable or the significance of unobsarvable paramaters increased.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, a total of JPY 1,547 million of financial assets (2020: JPY 4,328
million} and a total of JPY 1,269 million of financial liabilities (2020; JPY 7,318 milkon) were transiermed
out of Level 3. On the financial assets side the translerred amount comprsed primarily JPY 1,220 million
of equity dervatives {2020: comprised primarily JPY 4,010 million of equity denivatives) which were
transferred out of Level 3 because certain volatilties and comrelations bacame observable or the
significance of unobsarvable parametars decreased, On the financial liabilties side the transiarmad
amounts comprised primarily JPY 632 million of equity derivatives (2020 comprised primarly of JPY
6,776 million of equity derivatives) which wara transfarred out of Level 3 because certain volatilfies and
correlations became observable or the significance of unobservable parameters decreased.

The Company issues medium-term notes which containg embedded featwres that alter the refum to the
invesior from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest 1o a return that depends upen some clher

variables, such as an aquily or equity index, commadity prica, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third
party or a mara complex interesi rale (i.e., an embeddad derivative).
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The fair value of such medium term notes is determined using a quoted marke! price in an active markel
for the identical liability if available, and where not available, using a mixdure of valuation techniques that
usa the quoted price of the identical liabilty when traded as an asset, quoted prices for similar kabdities,
similar liabilities whan fraded as an asset, or an inlernal modal which combines discounted cash flow
("DCF") valuation techniques and aption pricing models, depending on the nature of the embedded leatures
within the medium term note. The significant valuation inputs used to estimate the fair value of the dett
instrument component include yield curves, prepayment rates, detaull of probabiliies and less severilies.

Valuation processes

Tha Company is fully integrated into Momura Group's governance framewcork which mandates
datarmination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functiens independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropriateness
of any fair value measurement of a financial instrument used within these financial statemenis including
those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

The functions within Momura Group for either defining, implementing or maintaining valuation policies
and procedures are as follows:

+  The Valuation Model Validation Group ("VMVG") within Momura's Risk Management Department
reviews pricing models and assesses model appropriateness and consistency independently of
the front office. The model reviews consider a number of factors about a medel's suitability for
valuation and sensitivity of a pamicular predest. Valuation modals are calibrated to the market on
a pericdic basis by comparison to observable market pricing, comparison with alternative models
and analysis of risk profiles.

+  The Accounling Policy Group within Nomura’s Finance Depariment defines the Group's accounting
policies and procedures, including those asscciated with determination of fair value. This group
reports to the Global Head of Accounting Policy and ullimately 1o the CFO of Nomura Group.

Independant price veriicalion processes

The key abjective of the indepandent price varification prosesses within Nomura Group is to verify the
appropriatenass of fair value measurements applied to all financial instruments within Nomura Group.
In applying these confrol processes, observable inputs are used whenever possible and when
uncbsanable inpuls are necessary, the processes seek Lo ensure the valuation technigue and inpuls
are appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied,

The independeant price verification processes aim 1o verily the fair value of all pesitions to external levels
on a regular basis. The process involwas obtaining data such as trades, marks and prices from intermal
and external sources and examining the impact of marking the internal positions af the external prices.
Margin disputes within the collateral process are also investigated to detesmine if there is any impact
on valuations,

Where third-party pricing information sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus pricing servicas is
used as par of the price verification process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions involving identical or similar
financial instruments are currenily executable. If such transactions or prices are noi available, the
financial instrument will generally be classilied in Level 3.

Quantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
used for financial instruments classified as Level 3, Thase financial instruments also typically include
observable valuation inputs (i.e. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the lable.

Tha following fable shows valuation techniques and inpuls used in the fair value measuremenis of Level 3
financial assets and financial liabilities:
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Fair walwe as of
March 2021
Millions of JPY
Significant Range af
Valuation uncbservable valuation
Assels Liabilithes lechnigque(s) inpuls inpuls’
Foreign exchanga 8,756 8,086 DCF/Option  FX Volatilities]3%] 12.08-13.03%
related darivatives Modal
Interest rate darivatives 24,658 26,362 DCF/ Option Intarast rales 01222505
Model  FX Volatilties]3s] 9.57-13.12%
IR Volatifties{bp] 29.60:77.01
Comelations -0.25-0.98
-1.0101.0)
Equity derivatives 4716 5253 DCF/Option Dividend yield 006,775
Model  EQ Volatlites[%:] 13,8382 31%
Comelations -0,62-0.96
(1.0 bo 1.0}
Credit defivatives 990 340 DCF Cradit Spraads 0.24-1,39%
Racovery Rates 35 -35%
Financial liabdilies DCFOption Interast rales 0.12-2.06%,
dasignated at fair value - #03,732 Model  FX Volatilities[%:] B5T-13.1 8%
through profit or loss IR Volatlities[bp] 20.60-63.04
Comalations «,25-0.98
_ {-1.0 0 1.0)
Taolal 391N 444,783
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Falr value as of
March 2020
Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assals Liabilities techniqua(s) inpuls inputs’
Foreign exchanga 8,988 9,526 DCFiOption  FX Volatilities]:] 12.48-13.05%
related darivatives Modal
Interast rate darivativas 38876 37,081 DCF/ Option Intarast ralas 0131125
Model  FX Volatlities{3:] B.81-13.80%
IR Valalitias{bp] 29.95-103.23
Comelations -0.25-0.98
{~1.000 1.0)
Equity derivatives 1,368 TA21 DCF/Option Dividend yield 0.00-9.28%
Modedl  EQ Volatlities[3s] 17.22-76.40%
Compations 0, 71-0.91
{-1.0 bo 1.0}
Crpdit darivatives 190 a2r DCF Cradit Sproads 0.10-1.950%
Recovery Rates 35 -35%
Financial liakdlitias - 186,485 DCF/Option Interest ratas 0.02-0.T6%
designated at fair value Model  FX Voladlities]%] B.81-13.07%
through profit or loss IR Wolatiities[bp] 29.95-57.60
Correlations -0.25-0.98
{-1.080 1.0}
Tatal 49,423 240,840

* Rangs inlcmiation is provided in percenlages, coelficients and represents the highest and lowes! el significant uncbserviatile
vindua o inpu used to vidue that type of financia instrument. A widke dispersion in the range does nol necessarily reflect increased
uncatainty or subjectivity in the valuation inpat and is typically just & corsequence of the different characteristics of the financial
instnsments themsahes,

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Leval 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to genaral market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
correlation risk, current values may continue to decrease if conditions deteriorate further. Conversely,
should condflions improve; an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected, However,
management doas nat anticipate a significant impact in the net position of Level 3 financial instruments.

As the Company enters into darvative transactions 1o hedge its exposures in medium term nates, the
inzrease or decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact s profits and
leeszas. Hedging dervative instruments offset the positiong arising frem the dervatives which are
embedded in the deb! instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value 1o changes in unobservable
inputs related to thesa financial instruments,

Fer each class of financial instrument described in the above tables. changes in each of the significant
unobservable inputs and assumplions used by the Company will impact the fair value measurameant of
the financial instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair valve measurements to changes in
uncbservable inpuls and intarrelationships betweean those inputs are describad balow:

Derivatives - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases
{decreases) in the underlying of the derivative, such as inlerest rates or credit spreads in isolation or
significant decreases (increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value measuremeant. Where the Company iz shor the undarlying risk of a derivative, the impact of these
changes would have a converse effect an the fair value measurements reported by the Gompany.
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Where the Company is long oplionality, recovery rates or correlation, significant increases (decreases)
in volatilities, recovery rates or cormelation will genarally resull in a significantly higher (lower) fair value
measurement. Wheare the Company is short optionality, recovery rates or correlation, the impact of
these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measuremems.

Financial labililies desigrated at fair value through profit or loss — When financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or boss contain embedded features, embedded features alter the return 1o the
imvestor from simply receiving a fixed or floating rate of interest to a reurn that depends upon some
other variables, such as an equity or equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating
of a third party or a more complex interast rate.

Given that the financial derivatives are held for risk management purposes to offset movemeant from such
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, sensilivity of the fair value of the financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected to
b i the opposite direction of thase of the dervalives.

Thaera iz o predictable imeralatonship between significant unobsarvable inputs for Level 3 financial
instrumants,

Given the Company is exposad 1o limited market risk, the sensilivily of the profit or less and equity to
unchsenvable inputs is megligible. Regarding the statement of financial position, when reasonably
possible altarnative unobservable inpuls are usad, the impact on fair value of Lavel 3 instrumants is not
gignificant compared to the tolal assets of the entity,

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of valuation technigues with significant unobservable parameters
are defemed over the lite of the contract until parameters become observable or when the instrument is
deracognised, Changes in fair value after inception are recognised in the proft or loss accownt. The total
fair value attributable 1o these financial instrumends that is yet to be recognised in the praf or loss account
as of the stalement of financial position date is JPY 347 million gain (2020: JPY 512 million gain). The
following table shows a reconciliation of movements inthe day 1 gains and losses between the beginning
balances and the ending balances.

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Millions of JPY Milicns of JPY
Beginning balance gain 512 640
New transactions - -
Amounts recegnised in profit or loss during the year {165) (128)
Ending balance gain 347 512
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25. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Thie following table provides a summary of inancial assets and financial liabilties subjact to the Master
Metiing Agreemenis and similar agreements.

As of March 201
Millicns of JPY

Related amounts not set off in
the staternent of linancial

position
Gross
amounts  Amounts
Gross amounts of  Offeer I prasented
racognised balance  balance  Financial Cash Net
H] ]

assetsliabilitlas” sheal sheal instruments! collateral™ Amaount
Derivative
financial assets 157,326 - 157,328 {565,935) . 873
Loans and
advances o
affiliales 265,825 - 265,825 - . 265,825
Other assats 1,840 - 1,840 - - 1,840
Toetal financial
assals 424,991 - 424,991 (69,935) - 355,056
Craivative
financial 176,919 . 176,919 (89, 246) (107,673) .
liakilities.
Oiher liakilities G0 - 590 (E20) - -
Total financial
labilities 177,609 - 177,609 {649,936) [107,673) -
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As of March 2020
Millicns of JPY
Related amounts not set off in
the staternent of linancial
position
Gross
amounts  Amounts

Gross amounts of u":: In p':'m“d

racognised

financlal balance balance Financial Cash Mat

assets/llabilitles!’ shaal gheal instruments collateral™! Amaunt
Derivative
financial assets BT 409 - &7.408 (85,324) . 1,085
Loans and
advances o
alfiiples 261,015 . 261,018 - . 261,016
Todal financial
assels 28,425 - 28,425 (66, 324) - 262101
Drevivativa
financial 260,785 - 268,785 (62, 364) (207,008) 416
liakilities
Oither liabilies 3,960 - 3,960 {3.960) - -
Todal financial
liabilities 273,745 - 273,745 (66, 324) [207,005) 416

1} The bilurcated embodded dodvatives aro eaocduded as thiy are nol in Scope ol master netling and similar agroomaents.

#] Those represenl amounts which are not pamitted 1o be offset on the face of the balance shoat bt which provide the
Company with the right of ofiset in the event of counterparty default, insolency or bankupicy,

31 The cash collateral received against the positive mark to masket values of desivatives and the cash collaberal pledged
towarcs the megative mark to marked values of desivatiees are reported wndar Other Dabiites and Citfer assefs respectively.

The Company antered inte 1ISDA Master Agreemants with all denvative counterparties which gramt the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruplcy. The
Company also enterad into On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Netting Agreements with
one of the counferparfies which grant the Company the right to set aff in the event of counterparty
delault, insclvency or bankruptey. These arrangements reduce credit risk exposure relative to what the
credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their gross exposures on the same
underlying contracts.

Usually, nefting arrangements are constituted by a master netling agreemant which specifies the
general terms of the agresment batween the counterparties, including mformation on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of default and cther termination evenis, the
calculation of damages jon defaulf) and documeniation required. The Master Netting Agreemant
contains the lerms and condilions by which all (or as many as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are governed. Multiphe indwvidual transactions are subsumed under this genaral
master netting agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct their
ralevant mulual business. In addition to the mitigaticn of eredit risk, placing individual transactions under
a single master netling agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope also helps to
mitigate sedtlement risks associated with transacting in mulliple junsdictions or across muliphe
contracls,

26. Capital management policy

The objective of the Company's capial management policy is to ensure that the Company has an
appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and issued medium term noles and borrowing from
affiliates.

The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into considaration the financing needs and lkuidity position of Nemura Group.
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Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year.

As of
March 2021 March 2020
Milligns of JPY Milkons of JPY
Issued and paid-up capital 6,658 6,117
Share premium 1,321 1,321
Currency translation resarve 1,744 2,285
Total issued capital 9,723 9,723
Detd issued and other barrowing 254 737 380,150
- Non-curment 242,203 315818
- Currant 12,534 64,332
Financial liabilties designated at fair value through
profit or loss 1,334,609 1,331,523
+ Non-curment T97.:5 917.855
- Current 536,654 413,668
Bemowing from affiliates 896,182 TE1.312
- Mon-currant - -
- Current 06,182 7B 2
Total issued capital, madium lerm noles and
borrowing from atfiliates 2,495,251 2,502,708

27. Related parties

Same as disclosad in alsewhers of thesa financial stalaments, the Company had the following material
transactions with related parties during the parod.

a. Transactions with the parent

i.  The Company entered into koan agreemenis with NHI and earmed interest income of JPY
12,532 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: JPY 11.029 millien) (Fefer to Note 3).
As of 21 March 2021, tofal outstanding baan to NHI amountad to JPY 1,862,651 million (2020;
JPY 1,880,106 million). The outstanding balance is unsecured. The Company has JPY 233,300
million unsettled loan commitments to NHI as of 31 March 2021 (2020; JPY 235,000 million}.
JPY 52 millian impairment gain has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2021 on the
lnams and unsetiled koan commitments 1o MHI (2020; JPY 65 million loss),

i, The Company entered into a dealer agreemen! with NHI, as one of the guaraniors of the
Company notes, whareby the Company has agreed (o pay a lea (Refer to Note 4) baged on
the average outstanding amount of the notes duing the relevant calculation period. JPY 852
million guarantes fees were reported under Few and commission axpanse for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: JPY 944 million). As of 31 March 2021, the guarantes lee payable to
MHI is JBY 8862 million (2020: JPY S44 million).

i, In accordance with the Unilateral APA in the Netherlands (Refer 1o Note 11}, NHI agreed to
pay the adjustment amount resulting from the APA to the Company. The adjusiment amount
of JPY 1,053 milkon gain was reported under Ofher operaling gains, For previous periods,
the adjustment amaunts were charged (o the Company by NHI and reported under General
and administralive expenses (2020: JPY 3,745 milion). As of 31 March 2021, JPY 1,053
million is accrued under Other assets (2020 JPY 22 million was accrued wnder Other
lakilities) in relation to the APA.

iv. The Company incured service fee of JPY 406 million for NHI information technolegy
infrastruciure suppert and ather services for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: JPY 423
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millkon). This expense is reported under General and adminisiralive expenses in the incoma
staterment. As of 31 March 2021, the service fee payable fo MHI is JPY 203 milkon (2020:
JPY 206 million}.

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2021, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from Nomura
Group. Mo remuneration 1o the managing directors was chargeable to the Company for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020,

¢. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company entersd imo loan agreements with other related parties and eamned interast
income of JPY 5,857 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020; JPY 17,305
million) (Fefer to Mote 3), As of 31 March 2021, total outstanding loan to other related parties
amounted to JPY 594,658 million (2020: JPY 582,751 million). All outstanding balances ane
unsecured, The Company has JPY 8,313 million unsetiled loan commitments to other related
pariies as of 31 March 2021 (2020: nil). JPY 26 millon impairment gain has been recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2021 on the loans and unseftled commatments to other related
parties (2020: JPY 158 milion gain)

i The Company entered imMo borrowing agreements with olher related parties and incumad
interest expense (Refer fo Note 3), All borrowings from affiliates are from other related parties.

ii. The Company entered into dervalive transactions with cther related parties under ISDA Master
Agreements, As of 31 March 2021, dedvative financial agsets and derivative financial liabilties
with ofher related paries amounted o JPY 157,328 milion and JPY 178,319 million,
respectively (31 March 2020 derivative financial assets - JFY 67,409 million and derivalive
financial liabilties - JPY 268,785 million). Under ISDA Credit Suppart Annesx signed with ralated
parties, the Company posts and receives cash collateral related to denvative transactions
{Rater to nofe 16 and 21).

iv. As of 31 March 2021, total owtstanding balance of debt issued by the Gompany hedd within
Momura Group for liquidity or market making purpeses amounted to JPY 14,838 milkon (2020:
JPY 15,445 million) of which JPY 2,712 million classified under Debl isswed and ofher borraving
(2020 JPY 4,363 million) and JPY 11,986 million undar Financial liabilties designated af fair
vl throwgh profit or koss (20200 JPY 11,082 malion).

v. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in Nomura Group,
as guaraniors of the Company notes, whereby it has agreed to pay a fee (Refer to Note 4)
based on the average cutstanding amaount of the notes during the relevant calsulation period.
JPY 4 million guarantes fees were charged 1o Fee and commission expense for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020 JPY 8 million). Az of 31 March 2021, the guarantes lea payable 1o the
ather related party is JPY 4 million (2020: JPY & million).

vi. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company incumed service fees amounting to JPY 162
million ta cerlain related paies for provision of cparational suppor which are reparted under
General and adminisirative expenses in the income statement (2020: JPY 106 million).

wil. Far the year period ended 31 March 2021, the Company incurmad sarvice révenus amourntng
fo JPY 92 million from certain related party for operational support which are reported under
Cther operafing gains in the income statement (2020: JPY 23 million).

viii. The Company enterad into a dealer agreemaent with other refated party who underwrites notes
issued by the Company including the noles classified under Financial Nabililies designated at
fair value through prefit or loss. The Company economically hedges structured nature of the
noies by entering derivative transactions with anciher other related party. Gain or loss arising
from the notes was recognised under Net gaindioss) on financial Vabilities designafed at fair
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value through proft or foss while gain or loss arising from derivative fransactions was
recognised under Net trading income/f{ioss).

. The Company places/recaives Cash collateral toffrom dervalive counlerpardies related to
derivative transactions and incurred interest {Refer to Note 16 and Note 21},

28. Events after the reporting period

Memura Groug is continuing 1o menitor and update the precautionany measuras in response 1o the ongoing
COVID-19 oautbreak, Substantial pandamic business continuily plans continue to evolve in line with
business requiraments,

29. Appropriation of result - Management proposal

Tha management proposes to add the total gain for the year ended 31 March 2021 of JPY 1,008 millicn to
the retained earmings. This proposal has beon reflected in tha accounts.

B July 2021

Managing Directors

Kemaro Kubaota Kenichire Asanc

OTHER INFORMATION

Auditor's report

The repart of the auditors, Emst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6.
Appropriation of result - Provision In the Company’s articles of assoclatlon

In &ccordance with Article 20 of the Company's articles of association, the ned result shall be free at the
disposal of the General Meeting.
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x (HSI
(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): ©)
HSILI(T-1): m
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1) x
(TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): m
K:1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

200
L(T) = L(T-D)x [1 + {Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

L(T): m 200

L(T-1) : m 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (F(T)/F(T-1) - 1) + (Kx 0.85) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: 1

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
16,748.69 25,374.67 30,841.69 24,080.11 21,620.88
9,874.67 14,011.07 16,327.56 16,665.33 11,776.79
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
15,014.63 17,438.87 17,837.14 21,822.03 23,103.58 21,252.89
13,680.95 14,455.31 16,422.40 18,153.36 19,986.03 18,469.90
Bloomberg
)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
9,038.74 7,015.23 5,670.84 5,524.01 6,056.80
6,516.88 4,929.88 4,447.28 4,563.88 4,518.82
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
5,218.20 5,058.21 4,714.66 4,478.67 4,239.49 4,338.88
4,968.43 4,586.97 4,518.82 4,069.55 3,935.67 4,076.84
Bloomberg
)
200
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
230.56 376.03 371.77 264.33 418.96
172.24 226.50 213.03 194.78 116.78
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
284.92 345.40 418.96 525.15 503.91 481.20
253.37 260.67 344.49 441.72 452.87 443.28
Bloomberg
)
200
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1,035.71 887.36 890.83 911.02 1,121.14
889.94 689.12 686.00 765.93 523.75
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
688.34 679.70 587.84 508.38 495.12 498.60
651.21 587.65 523.75 463.87 471.63 479.67
Bloomberg
)
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
35,750.10 11,287.72 2,490.85 1,663.03 1,982.89
10,936.15 1,926.18 1,084.99 400.36 263.90
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
394.79 323.97 305.84 334.90 318.90 286.92
299.32 283.04 263.90 269.85 278.83 221.86
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
16,245.14 16,844.20 17,349.46 21,413.13 36,165.67
12,689.91 14,437.73 13,224 .51 15,228.30 19,075.25
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
31,321.86 31,222.91 29,366.91 30,118.76 28,627.99 27,188.37
28,754.91 25,521.30 26,254.22 27,331.04 26,303.15 25,256.59
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
6,650.32 6,114.68 6,317.04 5,865.28 5,112.78
5,851.50 5,639.84 5,546.42 4,888.43 3,628.89
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
4,021.89 4,253.45 4,192.37 4,093.96 4,164.03 4,247.21
3,856.90 3,857.06 3,957.97 3,904.07 3,997.96 4,088.74
Bloomberg
)
JPX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1,831.24 2,062.91 3,834.26 2,708.95 2,336.99
769.87 1,031.06 1,208.97 1,432.64 149.37
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
341.38 381.13 416.45 503.10 675.86 785.43
247.58 241.38 355.68 395.31 477.88 605.63
Bloomberg
)
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JPX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
15,713.56 8,021.12 6,315.45 5,578.41 7,784.36
6,269.31 5,450.03 3,763.64 4,009.02 3,287.23
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
4,446.10 4,501.74 3,579.92 3,360.20 3,031.66 2,652.73
3,828.38 3,462.98 3,287.23 2,961.54 2,523.10 2,314.36
Bloomberg
)
10
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1,486.11 2,209.55 2,516.59 2,557.92 2,704.76
938.36 1,442.29 1,587.43 1,707.93 967.14
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
2,227.03 2,404.95 2,486.82 2,579.88 2,704.18 2,910.89
1,877.49 1,937.72 2,366.95 2,380.04 2,416.12 2,525.65
Bloomberg
)
11
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
530.48 411.02 355.69 341.05 386.32
405.49 322.40 293.31 265.96 214.63
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
249.62 245.61 220.44 218.66 217.00 211.06
230.06 218.92 214.63 210.38 204.50 195.97
Bloomberg
)
12
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1,226.42 1,234.02 1,355.55 967.92 1,365.49
667.49 955.09 757.02 824.20 557.86
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
1,365.49 1,265.73 1,265.56 1,301.12 1,320.73 1,249.53
1,171.25 1,155.42 1,128.90 1,207.54 1,214.09 1,147.86
Bloomberg
)
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13 STOXX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
4,602.12 5,842.81 6,192.48 5,876.87 5,749.65
3,655.67 4,558.10 5,254.96 5,080.21 3,517.58
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
4,303.87 5,131.36 5,292.14 5,474.05 5,502.23 5,854.56
4,110.83 4,130.30 5,057.94 5,168.56 5,216.23 5,521.22
Bloomberg
)
14 S&P500 )
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
415.05 487.99 524 .51 597.95 645.54
335.97 403.93 443.47 458.25 388.46
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
607.73 645.54 644.98 659.21 665.82 702.48
563.92 582.34 631.75 630.89 634.98 648.44
Bloomberg
)
15 S&P
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
503.87 593.80 604.85 721.44 762.78
414 .17 465.01 553.28 573.28 476.26
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
682.03 678.05 691.68 720.22 708.82 710.35
621.87 626.18 660.51 688.67 674.12 668.09
Bloomberg
)
16 Nifty50 ( )
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
3,660.20 4,617.15 5,467.50 5,440.90 6,069.20
2,319.25 2,977.00 3,930.25 4,172.95 1,933.80
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
4,502.35 5,320.20 6,069.20 6,639.30 7,214.05 7,115.30
4,101.60 4,265.35 5,358.90 5,744.50 6,287.75 6,259.35
Bloomberg
)
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17 Nifty50 ( )
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
521.60 456.05 396.10 381.20 519.00
411.85 367.90 337.25 334.05 272.85
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
334.25 326.80 290.85 279.90 266.70 265.10
318.90 292.05 272.85 260.70 248.65 249.05
Bloomberg
)
18
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
39,227.86 45,782.80 47,746.38 44,874.06 44,346.51
28,026.49 36,706.29 37,031.05 36,732.76 30,206.25
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
37,201.33 39,273.07 39,583.69 41,486.70 44,384.64 48,221.20
34,969.98 35,802.39 38,322.86 38,674.20 40,913.87 43,587.25
Bloomberg
)
19 S&P/JIPX
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
231.460 278.681 288.258 281.344 278.637
174.126 219.578 225.787 225.218 194.636
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
251.835 263.122 266.039 279.529 294901 322.778
239.741 245.364 257.423 261.267 274.341 289.556
Bloomberg
)
20
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
3,950.453 3,847.177 4,172.403 5,471.260 5,536.668
3,181.302 3,423.293 3,591.120 4,033.305 2,884.009
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
4,452_191 4,411.771 4,567.500 4,740.856 5,116.933 5,200.254
4,158.719 4,176.454 4,291.892 4,482 .509 4,670.579 4,844.265
Bloomberg
)
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21 Al 70
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
30,186.35 36,675.01 38,373.24 34,441.74 34,553.13
22,188.60 28,581.10 28,161.23 29,208.32 23,397.85
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
31,030.73 32,967.22 33,859.85 35,859.91 38,612.70 40,776.11
29,239.08 29,689.69 32,701.51 33,320.78 35,422.54 37,464.07
Bloomberg
)
22 30
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
18,931.34 24,082.17 25,957.90 19,494.79 23,226.87
12,520.14 17,666.71 16,457.87 15,835.26 12,760.43
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
20,409.20 22,601.25 23,226.87 25,273.71 26,468.01 26,833.29
19,235.67 19,537.18 22,496.95 23,236.82 24,573.90 24,854.92
Bloomberg
)
23 50
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
22,303.93 26,078.87 27,725.06 27,826.69 27,823.84
18,832.58 21,746.35 22,879.73 23,361.87 20,871.32
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
25,129.15 26,850.28 26,703.19 27,554.04 28,379.99 29,663.78
24,067.22 24,718.32 25,966.61 26,253.31 26,849.88 27,600.40
Bloomberg
)
24
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1,326.35 1,748.22 1,820.28 1,684.41 1,670.68
941.42 1,295.05 1,279.74 1,345.49 1,083.17
2020 2020 2020 2021 2021 2021
10 11 12
1,528.86 1,587.59 1,637.77 1,686.25 1,772.45 1,912.53
1,463.84 1,481.12 1,576.70 1,611.98 1,673.96 1,738.73
Bloomberg
)
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| ndependent auditor’s report

To: the shareholder and managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March
2021 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 of Nomura Europe Finance NV., based in Amsterdam.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of Nomura Europe Finance
NV. asat 31 March 2021, and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Thefinancia statements comprise:
The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021
The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2021: the income statement, the statements of comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows
The notes comprising a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Basis for our opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance NV. (the company) in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties
(Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten (ViO,
Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants, aregulation with respect to independence) and other relevant independence regulations
in the Netherlands. Furthermore we have complied with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code
of Ethics).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Materiality
Materiality JPY 7,947 million (31 March 2020: JPY 8,550 million)
Benchmark applied 0.5% (31 March 2020: 0.5%) of ‘debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss
Explanation We have chosen ‘ debt issued and other borrowing’ and ‘financial liabilities designated at fair

value through profit or loss as benchmark as we believe the total balance of these accountsis
the most important metric for the users of the financia statements. We determined materiality
consistently with the previous financial year.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material for the users of the
financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatementsin excess of JPY 397 million, which are identified during the audit, would
be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be reported on qualitative grounds.
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Scope of the audit

Nomura Europe Finance NV. (or NEF) has operations in both Tokyo (Japan) and Amsterdam (Netherlands). The financial
information of operations at both locations is included in the financial statements of NEF.

Our audit focused on the operations in the Netherlands and Japan. We have:
Performed audit procedures ourselves over operations in the Netherlands
Used the work of a component auditor within our EY network when auditing the operations in Japan

Because of the (international) travel restrictions and social distancing due to the Covid-19 pandemic, we used communication
technology and written information exchange, e.g. intensified communication with our component auditor, in order to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence.

We sent instructions to the component auditor, covering the significant areas and the information required to be reported to us. Based
on our risk assessment, we held virtual site visits with our team in Japan. These site visits were virtual dueto Covid-19 and
encompassed some, or al, of the following activities: reviewing key local working papers and conclusions and obtaining an
understanding of key processes. We interacted regularly with the component team during various stages of the audit, through the use
of video or teleconferencing facilities. We held a collective virtual closing meeting with management. We reviewed key working
papers of the component auditor using the EY electronic audit file platform, screen sharing or by the provision of copies of work
papers direct to the audit team.

By performing the procedures mentioned above over operationsin the Netherlands and Japan, we have been able to obtain sufficient

and appropriate audit evidence about NEF' s financial information to provide an opinion about the annual financial statementsasa
whole.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financia

statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors. The key audit matters are not a comprehensive
reflection of all matters discussed.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as awhole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Compared to prior year, no adjustments have been made in the key audit matters.

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

Risk

The derivatives portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance NV. comprises of non-listed derivatives where the
values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-
market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14 and note 24 to the
financial statements as a key audit matter due to the relative size of the related accounts as compared to the
total balance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with aresulting risk for
incorrect valuation of the derivative financia instruments.

Our audit
approach

We have obtained an understanding of the derivatives valuation process, evaluated the design and tested
operating effectiveness of internal controls. This includes those controls within the model validation process
and the independent price verification process that address the risk of material misstatement relating to
management’ s assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also
includes the testing of model performance and suitability controls as a result of market volatility due to the
ongoing impact of COVID-109.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodol ogies and tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparing these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation
adjustments relating to CVA and DVA. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held
with the support of our internal valuation specialists.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of derivative financial instruments and
agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and the disclosures on derivatives in
accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Valuation of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Risk

Nomura Europe Finance NV. issuesfinancia liabilities which are designated at fair value through profit or
loss, where the values are based on valuation techniques using both market observable (mainly level 2
positions) and non-market observable (mainly level 3 positions) inputs.

We consider the fair value of financid liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
note 20 and note 24 to the financial statements as akey audit matter due to the relative size of the account as
compared to the total balance sheet and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimateswith a
resulting risk for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Our audit
approach

We have obtained an understanding of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
valuation process and evaluated the design and tested operating effectiveness of internal controls. This
includes those controls within the model validation process and the independent price verification process that
address the risk of material misstatement relating to management’ s assessment of the significant inputs and
estimatesincluded in fair value measurement. It also includes the testing of model performance and suitability
controls as aresult of market volatility due to the ongoing impact of COVID-19.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodol ogies, tested the most significant valuation inputs by
comparison of these inputs to independently sourced market data for market observable inputs and other third
party sources for non-market observable inputs. In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation
adjustments relating to own credit risk. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions issued
with the support of our internal valuation specialists as well as performed independent testing on bonds by
using available market quotations.

Lastly, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss and agree with the managing directors assessment of the measurement and the
disclosures in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Valuation of loans and advances to affiliates

Risk

Nomura Europe Finance NV. isrequired to record an impairment allowance for expected credit losses for the
loans and advances to &ffiliates. The impairment allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated
with the probability of default in the next 12 months unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case the allowance is based on the probability of default over the expected life of
the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliates as disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the size of the loan portfolio and given that an impairment may have a
material effect on the income statement.

Our audit
approach

We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an understanding of the
impairment process and model. We assessed the impairment methodology and expected credit loss cal culation.
We verified the criteriafor identifying significant increase in credit risk and tested the accuracy of internal
credit ratings.

We evaluated the determination of the probability of default including forward-looking information. We
evaluated management’ s impact assessment for the Covid-19 pandemic on expected credit 0sses.
Furthermore, we recal culated the impairment allowance as per 31 March 2021.

Additionally, we tested the relevant disclosures for accuracy and compl eteness.

Key observations

Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the impairment allowance for expected credit losses
for the loans and advances to affiliates and agree with the managing directors assessment of the expected
credit losses and the disclosures on loans and advances to affiliates in accordance with EU-IFRS and Part 9 of
Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Report on other information included in the annual report

In addition to the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, the annual report contains other information that consists of:
The managing directors report
Other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:
Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements
Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of the financial
statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material misstatements. By performing these
procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of
the procedures performed is substantially |ess than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the managing directors report in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement
We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance NV. We are unable to determine since which
financial year we have operated as the statutory auditor, but we have operated as statutory auditor for at least 16 years.

Description of responsibilitiesfor the financial statements

Responsihilities of the managing directors for the financial statements

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with EU-
IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the managing directors are responsible for such internal control as
the managing directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financia statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the managing directors are responsible for ng the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting frameworks mentioned, the managing directors should prepare the
financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless the managing directors either intend to liquidate the company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. The managing directors should disclose events and circumstances
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objective isto plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit

evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not detect all material errors and
fraud during our audit.

206/207



EDINETO OO
OOoooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooOooOoOn(e24747)
ooooOoog
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. The materiality affects the
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in accordance with
Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designing
and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the managing directors

Concluding on the appropriateness of the managing directors use of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
company’s ability to continue as agoing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing, supervising and performing the audit. We
are responsible for obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the company’s operations to
express an opinion on the financial statements. In this respect we have determined the nature and extent of the audit procedures to be
carried out for operations in both Japan and the Netherlands.

We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these mattersin our auditor’ s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public
interest.

Amsterdam, 8 July 2021

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

R. Koekkoek
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